
1 

 
 

METROPOLITAN BOROUGH OF SEFTON 
 

COUNCIL SUMMONS 
 
 
To Members of the Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
You are requested to attend a Meeting of the Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council to  
 
be held on Thursday 22nd November, 2012 at 6.30 pm at the Town Hall,  
 
Southport to transact the business set out on the agenda overleaf. 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 
 
Town Hall, 
Southport 
 
Wednesday 14 November 2012 
 
 

Please contact Steve Pearce, Head of Committee and Member Services  
on 0151 934 2046 or e-mail steve.pearce@sefton.gov.uk 

 

 

Public Document Pack



2 

 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank.



3 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

 Members are requested to give notice of any disclosable 
pecuniary interest, which is not already included in their 
Register of Members' Interests and the nature of that interest, 
relating to any item on the agenda in accordance with the 
Members Code of Conduct, before leaving the meeting room 
during the discussion on that particular item.  
 

 

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting 

 Minutes of the Council meeting held on 6 September 2012  
 

(Pages 9 - 18) 

4. Mayor's Communications 
 

 

Public Session 
 

5. Matters Raised by the Public 

 To deal with matters raised by members of the public 
resident within the Borough, of which notice has been given 
in accordance with the procedures relating to public 
questions, motions or petitions, set out in Paragraphs 36 to 
46 of Chapter 4 in the Council Constitution.  
 

 

Council Business Session 
 

6. Questions Raised by Members of the Council 

 To receive and consider questions to Cabinet Members, 
Chairs of Committees or Spokespersons for any of the Joint 
Authorities upon any matter within their portfolio/area of 
responsibility, of which notice has been given by Members of 
the Council in accordance with Paragraphs 48 to 50 in 
Chapter 4 of the Council Constitution.  
 

 

7. Transformation Programme and Revenue Budget 2012 - 
2015 

 Report of the Head of Transformation Services and Head of 
Corporate Finance and ICT  
 

(Pages 19 - 
84) 

8. Capital Programme - Contaminated Land Capital Project 
Grant 

 Report of the Director of Built Environment  
 
 
 

(Pages 85 - 
88) 



4 

9. Final Draft Revised Statement of Gambling Licensing 
Policy - Gambling Act 2005 

 Report of the Director of Built Environment  
 

(Pages 89 - 
96) 

10. Council Constitution - Urgency and Call-in Provisions 

 Report of the Leader of the Council  
 

(Pages 97 - 
98) 

11. Membership of Committees 2012/13 

 To consider any changes to the Membership of any 
Committees etc.  
 

 

12. Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor Sir Ron 
Watson 

 To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor Sir 
Ron Watson: 
 
"Sefton Council welcomes the clear commitment given by the 
Prime Minister not to introduce a Mansion Tax”  
 

 

13. Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor Weavers 

 To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor 
Weavers: 
 
“This Council welcomes the appointment of consultants for a 
sustainable energy action plan for the Liverpool City Region. 
 
The Council recognises that a sustainable energy action plan 
will be of immense importance for investment, businesses, 
jobs and the environment within Sefton. 
 
This Council commits itself to implementing a sustainable 
energy action plan and notes that delaying the 
implementation of an action plan will cost jobs and money.”  
 

 

14. Notice of Motion from Councillor McKinley 

 To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor 
McKinley: 
 
“Financial Malpractice: 
  
This Council recognises that taxation is an investment that 
enables the public and private sectors ability to do business 
and that tax evasion and avoidance are dysfunctional for the 
workings of a healthy economy. We condemn unethical 
business practice such as tax evasion, tax avoidance through 
loopholes, the activities of the offshore secrecy industry and 
the international financial malpractice operated by 
multinational companies. These actions significantly 

 



5 

contributed to the banking crisis and continue to siphon 
millions of pounds in flight capital out of the UK economy 
each day. We believe such activities are immoral and little 
more than economic crimes against the citizens of the UK, 
furthermore, they contribute to the growing wealth of the 
undeserving rich at the expense of and the impoverishment 
of middle and lower income working people. The UK deficit 
could be significantly reduced if such financial malpractice 
could be controlled, this fact exposes the Coalition 
governments ideologically driven weapon of choice ‘austerity’ 
as little more than a convenient smokescreen to embed 
economic liberalism  and reduce the size of the state. We call 
on national and local government to act to stop immoral 
financial malpractice. 
 
We call on the National Government to: 
 
Seek international agreement on cross border taxation and 
the control of multinational transfer pricing and support the 
European Union’s initiatives to introduce a financial 
transactions Tax; 
  
Re- introduce legislation on Usury to prevent the charging of 
excessive rates of interest;   
 
Introduce effective regulation of the financial services sector, 
including democratic control of the offshore industry and the 
activities of the City of London Corporation; and 
 
Introduce an effective General Anti-Abuse Rule to prevent 
tax evasion and dysfunctional tax avoidance. 
 
Sefton Council will: 
 
Enhance /reaffirm its commitment to ethical business practice 
to include a more robust approach to the assessment of 
ethical business practice as part of the local implementation 
of Social value/procurement legislation.”  
 

15. Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor Papworth 

 To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor 
Papworth: 
 
“The Council is pleased to note that a ‘Military Covenant’ for 
Sefton was signed on 18th May 2012, and that besides being 
among the first in the Country, our covenant successfully 
covers all the major points mentioned in the subsequent 
Royal British Legion publication  on Best Practice in such 
matters. 
  
The Council places on record its thanks to those whose 
efforts produced this encouraging start - Sefton CVS and 

 



6 

many others in the Voluntary Sector, numerous military 
officers, and of course, Sefton's own officers. 
  
The Council recognises that the Covenant will always be a 
‘work-in-progress’, needing up-dating to ensure that it meets 
current needs;  in this connection the Council welcomes the 
Government's recent changes to Housing regulations, which 
will make it easier for demobilised Service people to gain 
priority access to local housing.”  
 

16. Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor McGuire 

 To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor 
McGuire: 
 
“This Council notes the serious and damaging animal welfare 
and economic impact that Bovine TB has on British farming. 
This Council also notes with concern the considerable public 
and scientific opposition to the Government’s proposals to 
pilot a badger cull. 

The Council welcomes the decision to postpone the cull and 
urges the Government to re-evaluate the options - including 
vaccination. 

The Council acknowledges scientific research that highlights 
the short-comings in the government’s current proposals 
including a report by the Independent Scientific Group (ISG) 
that concluded that, ‘badger culling can make no meaningful 
contribution to cattle TB control in Britain.”  

 

 

17. Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor Brodie - 
Browne 

 To consider the following Motion Submitted by Councillor 
Brodie – Browne: 
 
“This Council notes  
 
(a)  widespread media reports that Starbucks has paid no 

corporation tax in the UK, in the last three years 
despite last year having UK sales of £398m. 
Starbucks describe their UK business as "profitable" 
and but paid nothing in corporation tax; 

 
(b)  In comparison, the British company, Costa Coffee had 

sales of £377m and a corporation tax bill of £15m; 

 

(c)  the widespread practice of multinational companies 
which  minimise their exposure to UK taxation by 
manipulating their payments to subsidiaries located in 

 



7 

tax havens; and 

(d)  that many small, local, independent coffee shops pay 
their taxes in  full. 

 
The Council expresses support for the many local 
businesses which make full and fair tax payments every year 
and urges the Government to continue to extend its 
programme of measures designed to make all companies 
pay fair taxation based upon genuine profit levels  

 

The Council urges citizens of the Borough of Sefton to 
support those enterprises which fulfil basic duties of 
corporate social responsibility and pay a proper level of tax.”  

 

18. Notice of Motion Submitted by Councillor Robertson 

 To consider the following Motion submitted by Councillor 
Robertson: 
 
“This Council congratulates Councillor Liam Robinson, Chair 
of Merseytravel, on establishing two Inquiries into concerns 
raised by Labour Party councillors and others about issues of 
governance at Merseytravel.   

 

The Council notes that one Inquiry report has been published 
and one is about to be published. 

 

The Council urges the Merseyside Integrated Transport 
Authority to carry out all the recommendations in the reports.”  

 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN” 

 

34 

COUNCIL 

 

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE 

ON THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 

 
 
PRESENT: The Mayor (Councillor K. Cluskey) (in the Chair) 

The Deputy Chair (Councillor M. Fearn) (Vice Chair) 
 

 Councillors Ashton, Atkinson, Ball, Bennett, 
Blackburn, Brodie - Browne, Byrom, Carr, 
L. Cluskey, Crabtree, Cummins, Dawson, Dodd, 
Dorgan, M. Dowd, P. Dowd, Dutton, Fairclough, 
Lord Fearn, Friel, Gatherer, Gustafson, Hubbard, 
Jones, Keith, John Kelly, Kermode, Kerrigan, Killen, 
Maguire, Maher, Mahon, McGinnity, McGuire, 
McIvor, McKinley, Moncur, Murphy, Page, Papworth, 
Preece, Rimmer, Roberts, Robertson, Robinson, 
Roche, Shaw, Sumner, Tonkiss, Tweed, Veidman, 
Weavers, Webster and Welsh 

 
 
38. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Booth, Bradshaw, 
Brennan, Cuthbertson, Hands, Hardy, Hartill, Keith, J.J. Kelly and Sir Ron 
Watson. 
 
39. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
The following declaration of pecuniary interest was made and the Member 
concerned who stayed in the room but took no part in the consideration of 
the item indicated: 
 
Member Minute 
  
Councillor Friel 46 – Merseyside Local Sustainable 

Transport Fund Major Project   
 
 
40. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 5 July 2012 be approved 
as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

35 

41. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 
London Olympics 2012 
 
The Mayor congratulated the Sefton Olympians, in particular Dan Purvis, 
the Team Gymnastics, Bronze Olympic Medal Winner and Fran Halsall 
and Michael Rimmer on taking part in this year’s London Olympic Games, 
which were a tremendous success and a proud moment for Great Britain. 
 
The Great Britain medals table was very impressive with 29 Gold Medals, 
17 Silver Medals and 19 Bronze Medals, which gave us third place in the 
Olympics’ medals table and a total of 65 medals awarded. 
 
The Mayor also indicated that he looked forward to announcing at the next 
Council Meeting, how well Great Britain had performed in the Paralympics 
currently taking place and extended best wishes to the local Sefton 
athlete, Jamie Burdekin who would be taking part in the Tennis event. 
 
Mayoral Engagements 
 
The Mayor reported that he had attended 38 Engagements during July 
and 15 Engagements in August, 2012. 
 
Southport Air Show 
 
The Mayor indicated he was delighted to announce that his Charity, The 
Mayor of Sefton’s Charity Fund would be raising money for the charity at 
the Air Show for the first time, with all money raised going to local 
organisations and individuals within Sefton. 
 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 
42. MATTERS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC  

 
The Mayor reported that Members of the Public had not submitted any 
petitions or questions. 
 

COUNCIL BUSINESS SESSION 
 
43. QUESTIONS RAISED BY MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL  

 
The Council considered a schedule setting out the written questions 
submitted by: 
 

• Councillor Papworth to the Leader of the Council (Councillor P. 
Dowd) 

 

• Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member – Regeneration and 
Tourism (Councillor Maher) 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 10



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

36 

• Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member – Children, Schools, 
Families and Leisure (Councillor Moncur) 

 

• Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member – Children, Schools, 
Families and Leisure (Councillor Moncur) 

 

• Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member – Children, Schools, 
Families and Leisure (Councillor Moncur) 

 

• Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member – Children, Schools, 
Families and Leisure (Councillor Moncur) 

 

• Councillor Dawson to the Leader of the Council (Councillor P. 
Dowd) 

 

• Councillor Preece to the Cabinet Member – Transportation 
(Councillor Fairclough) 

 

• Councillor Byrom to the Cabinet Member – Children, Schools, 
Families and Leisure (Councillor Moncur) 

 

• Councillor Brodie-Browne to the Leader of the Council (Councillor 
P. Dowd) 

 

• Councillor Brodie-Browne to the Cabinet Member – Older People 
and Health (Councillor Cummins) 

 

• Councillor Crabtree to the Leader of the Council (Councillor P. 
Dowd) 

 

together with the responses given.  Supplementary questions were asked 
and responded to by the Cabinet Member – Children, Schools, Families 
and Leisure, Cabinet Member – Older People and Health and Cabinet 
Member – Transportation. 
 
44. COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME  

 
Further to Minute No. 27 of the Cabinet meeting held on 19 July 2012, the 
Council considered the report of the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT 
on the proposals in the Local Government Finance Bill for the national 
Council Tax Benefit system to be replaced by a Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme from 2013-14, which would reduce expenditure by 10 
per cent as part of a wider policy of decentralisation and welfare reform. 
 
The report also set out the details of ‘Localising Support for Council 
Statement of Intent’ published by the Department for Communities and 
Local Government in May 2012 on the specific proposals for local 
authorities to produce a Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme and hold 
consultations with interested parties. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 11



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

37 

This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council’s Forward Plan 
of Key Decisions. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the report be noted; and 
 
(2) approval be given to the re-scheduling of the Council meeting from 

7 February 2013 to 24 January 2013 to enable the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme to be approved by the required deadline. 

 
45. MERSEYSIDE AND HALTON WASTE LOCAL PLAN - 

MODIFICATIONS ARISING FROM PUBLIC EXAMINATION  

 
Further to Minute No. 38 of the Cabinet meeting held on 16 August 2012, 
the Council considered the report of the Director of Built Environment 
which provided an update on the progress and outcomes of the public 
examination process for the Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan, the 
proposed modification to the Plan, the consultation process on the 
modifications and the final stages to adoption. 
 
This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council’s Forward Plan 
of Key Decisions. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That approval be given to: 
 
(1) the modifications (both main and additional) to the Waste Local 
Plan; 
 
(2) public consultation being undertaken on the modifications to the 

Waste Local Plan; and 
 
(3) District officers within the Waste Local Plan Steering Group being 

delegated to make necessary further minor and typographical 
changes to the Waste Local Plan prior to Council approval being 
sought for its adoption. 

 
46. MERSEYSIDE LOCAL SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT FUND 

MAJOR PROJECT  

 
Further to Minute No. 39 of the Cabinet meeting held on 16 August 2012, 
the Council considered the report of the Director of Built Environment 
which provided an update on the Council’s role in the Merseyside Local 
Sustainable Transport Fund major project which had been awarded 
funding by the Department for Transport. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 12



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

38 

 
It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) approval be given to the inclusion of £646,000 in the Capital 

Programme to be phased as indicated in paragraph 2.5 of the 
report;  

 
(2) approval be given to the inclusion of £300,000 grant funding from 

Sustrans in the Capital Programme towards the delivery of the 
Hightown to Formby Coastal Path Improvements; and  

 
(3) it be placed on record the appreciation of the work undertaken by 

Councillor Mark Dowd in his role as Chair of the Merseyside 
Integrated Transport Authority during the previous financial year.   

 
47. STEPCLEVER LEGACY FUND PROJECT  

 
Further to Minute No. 46 of the Cabinet meeting held on 16 August 2012, 
the Council considered the report of the Director of Built Environment on 
the award of the Stepclever Legacy grant for the Stepclever Legacy Fund 
Project to support new and existing businesses in South Sefton and North 
Liverpool. 
 
This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council’s Forward Plan 
of Key Decisions. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the award of Stepclever Legacy grant to the Council for the delivery 

of the Stepclever Legacy Fund Project be noted; and 
 
(2) approval be given to the inclusion of the Stepclever Legacy Fund 

Project within the Council’s Capital Programme for 2012/13 and 
2013/14 (subject to the receipt of a written offer of grant), at a cost 
of £1,847,749 to be fully funded from the Stepclever Legacy Grant.  
(£563,020 of this sum is residual funding from the Stepclever 
Property Project and is already included in the current Regeneration 
Capital Programme). 

 
48. RIVER MERSEY CHANNEL DREDGING PROJECT  

 
Further to Minute No. 47 of the Cabinet meeting held on 16 August 2012, 
the Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Built Environment on 
the current position relating to the Regional Growth Fund Bid for the River 
Mersey Dredging Project and the negotiations with the Mersey Docks and 
Harbour Company on the legal agreement for the project. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 13



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

39 

This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council’s Forward Plan 
of Key Decisions. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the report be noted; and 
 
(2) approval be given to the inclusion of the River Mersey Channel 

Dredging Project in the Capital Programme, subject to the receipt of 
the grant from the Regional Growth Fund. 

 
49. VEHICLE REPLACEMENTS - REFUSE COLLECTION FLEET 

AND SPECIALIST TRANSPORT VEHICLES  

 
Further to Minute No. 43 of the Cabinet meeting held on 16 August 2012, 
the Council considered the report of the Director of Street Scene on the 
results of two recent tendering exercises in respect of the purchase of new 
refuse collection vehicles for the Cleansing Section and ten new coach-
built welfare vehicles for the Specialist Transport Section, using a 
Prudential Borrowing facility arranged by the Finance Department. 
 
This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council’s Forward Plan 
of Key Decisions. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That approval be given to the inclusion of the sum of £4,384,175 in the 
Capital Programme for the purchase of the vehicles, to be financed by a 
Prudential Borrowing facility. 
 
50. REVIEW OF COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION  

 
Further to Minute No. 42 of the Cabinet meeting held on 16 August 2012, 
the Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Corporate Support 
Services and the Director of Corporate Commissioning on proposed 
changes to the Council’s Constitution. 
 
This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council’s Forward Plan 
of Key Decisions. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the newly revised Council Constitution be adopted with immediate 
effect. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 14



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

40 

51. APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2012/13  

 
(1) The Mayor indicated that the Council had agreed on 5 July 2012 

(Minute 31(2) refers) that Councillor Kerrigan be appointed as one 
of the Council’s representatives on to the Merseyside Police and 
Crime Panel for 2012/13, and requested the Council to appoint one 
Liberal Democrat Group Member as the Council’s second 
representative on to the Merseyside Police and Crime Panel for 
2012/13. 

 
It was moved by Councillor McGuire, seconded by Councillor Brodie-
Browne and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Councillor Shaw be appointed as the Council’s second representative 
on the Merseyside Police and Crime Panel for 2012/13. 
 
(2) Further to Minute No. 31(1) of the meeting held on 5 July 2012, it 

was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher 
and 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Councillor Carr be appointed as one of the Council’s representatives 
on the Merseyside Integrated Transport Authority for 2012/13 following the 
resignation of Councillor M. Dowd from that Authority. 
 
52. MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2012/13  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Webster that the following changes be 
made to the Membership of the following Committees: 
 
Audit and Governance Committee 
 
Councillor Roberts to replace Councillor Carr as a Member of the 
Committee and be appointed as the new Chair of the Committee. 
 
Planning Committee 
 
Councillor Roberts to replace Councillor Kerrigan as the Substitute 
Member for Councillor L. Cluskey. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the changes to the Membership of the Committees listed above be 
approved. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 15



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

41 

53. NOTICE OF MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR JONES  

 
It was moved by Councillor Jones, seconded by Councillor Dutton 
 
“The Council: 
 
(1) Recognises the many concerns raised by a significant number of 

Southport residents, regarding the management of the Ainsdale and 
Birkdale Nature Reserve and Dunes.  In particular, the recent and 
further application for a felling licence to fell a further substantial 
amount of English broadleaf trees in this protected natural 
environment. 

 
(2) Recognises that these works have progressed without recognition 

of the public interest, offering little public consultation. 
 
(3) Recognises that further concerns have been raised by Southport 

residents regarding the state of Southport beaches and foreshore.  
There are significant concerns amongst residents with the grass 
encroachment north of the pier and the deposits of disgraceful 
sludge covering Birkdale beach. 

 
(4) Notes that at the recent Southport Area Committee meeting held on 

18 July 2012, these concerns were recognised by eleven of the 
twenty-two questions and a petition presented to the meeting, being 
related to the Ainsdale and Birkdale Nature Reserve and the 
foreshore areas. 

 
(5) Notes that at the same Southport Area Committee meeting, the 

Liberal Democrat Members finally agreed with Southport 
Conservatives that these significant public concerns and their 
questions needed to be addressed and we therefore request that 
the works ongoing to the Ainsdale and Birkdale Nature Reserve are 
curtailed pending the completion and outcome of full public 
consultation being submitted to the Council to enable Members and 
the public to be informed and gain the answers our residents 
deserve. 

 
(6) Realises that a buoyant and prosperous coastal resort like 

Southport is not only good for the economy of Southport but the 
whole of Sefton and relies upon the co-operation of our local 
residents. 

 
(7) Requests that an urgent review is undertaken of our current coast 

management programme in order to protect Southport’s Dune 
system, foreshore and the many habitats within it.  Our ambition is 
to understand the ‘coastal processes’ and work to restore our 
beaches to their former condition.  It is in this understanding that we 
may be able to encourage our beaches to be used and enjoyed by 
many people.  This will encourage much needed revenue to 
Southport and Sefton”. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 16



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

42 

 
The Mayor indicated that the Motion in its current format, is one to which 
Rule 15.14 of the Council and Committee Procedure Rules (Motions on 
Expenditure) applies and if carried, it would need to be referred to the 
Cabinet for final consideration of the financial implications in advance of 
any budgetary commitment and prior to any action being taken to 
implement the decision.  If the Motion was amended and there are no 
financial implications arising from the Substantive Motion, it would not 
need to be referred to the Cabinet. 
 
Following debate thereon, on a show of hands, the Mayor declared that 
the Motion was lost by 47 votes to 7. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That no action be taken on the Motion. 
 
54. NOTICE OF MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR P. DOWD  

 
It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Council has difficult decisions to face, and will continue to face, in 
relation to its finance and provision of services. 
 
Local Government has been harder hit than any other area of government 
spending.  The figures provided by the present Government at the outset 
of the post emergency budget in June 2010 were misleading and grossly 
understated and whilst the Government promised fairness it has been 
lamentable in its delivery on this promise.  Contrary to its claims, we are 
not “all in it together” and the most deprived areas have fared worse.  The 
Council has had and will have to continue to make deep cuts to comply 
with the Government’s funding regime.  The Council will have to consider 
the impact that such cuts may have on the most vulnerable, as a large 
proportion of our spending is on adult social care. 
 
The all-Party Local Government Association paints a bleaker picture for 
the future if the Government continues on this path of financial 
retrenchment. 
 
Whilst the Council acknowledges that public finances are strained, in no 
small measure as a result of the Government’s policies, nevertheless the 
Council will be lacking in its responsibilities not to inform the people of 
Sefton why it is having to make these difficult decisions, many of which are 
as a result of Government demands. 
 
Given this, the Council agrees to ensure that as part of the public budget 
consultation process, it ensures that in its communications the public are 
aware of the size and nature of the cuts imposed by the Government on 
Sefton funding. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 17



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 
 

43 

 
(On a show of hands, the Mayor declared that the Motion was carried by 
31 votes to 22) 
 
 
55. NOTICE OF MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR DAWSON  

 
The Mayor announced that the undermentioned Notice of Motion had been 
withdrawn by Councillor Dawson:  
 
“This Council, noting the proposed election of a Police Commissioner for 
the Merseyside area, believes that it is inappropriate for the residents’ 
interests over this substantial area to be represented by a single paid 
politician.” 
 
 
(The Mayor agreed that the following item be considered as an urgent item 
under Section 100 B (4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 
 
56. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 85 - 

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS  

 

The Council considered the report of the Director of Corporate 
Commissioning which requested the Council to approve and authorise the 
absence of Councillor Hands from attendance at Council and Committee 
Meetings pursuant to Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 due to 
his current ill health. 

It was moved by Councillor P. Dowd, seconded by Councillor Maher and 

 RESOLVED:   

That the current absence from all Council and Committee Meetings of 
Councillor Hands due to ill health be authorised and approved for a further 
six month period from the date of this meeting until 5 March 2013 pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 18



 

 

Report to: Council      Date of Meeting: 22nd November 2012 
 
Subject: Transformation Programme & Revenue Budget 2012 - 2015 
 
Report of: Head of Transformation Services    Wards Affected: All 
                  & Head of Corporate Finance & ICT    
 
Is this a Key Decision?  Yes  Is it included in the Forward Plan? Yes 
 
Exempt/Confidential   No  
 

 
Purpose/Summary 
The Cabinet at meetings on 13th September, 11th October and 8th November 2012 
recommended to Council packages of savings proposals relating to business efficiencies to 
progress immediately, internal consultation options and a number of external consultation 
(information) options.  This report presents Cabinet’s recommendations to Council for 
consideration.  It should be noted that two options previously recommended by Cabinet 
have been deferred for further information to be provided to December 2012 Cabinet and 
that these options will be presented to Council at a later date.   
 
The report contains a number of annexes listed below for ease of reference: 
 
Annex A  - Work Programme Timetable 
 
Annex B  - Business efficiencies on which approval to progress immediately is sought 
 
Annex C  - Internal consultation proposals on which approval to progress immediately is 
sought  
 
Annex D  - Integration proposals on which approval to progress immediately is sought  
 
Annex E  - External consultation (information) proposals on which approval to progress as 
described is sought  
 
Key Messages 
 
This report sets out the following key messages: 
 

• Sefton Council needs to reduce spending by at least £43.7 million over the next two 
years  

• The Council’s level of funding will not be known until  the Government announces the 
local government grant settlement for 2013/14 in December  

• The Council continues to face a significant challenge which is made much greater by 
the fact that the Council’s spending has already reduced by £64 million in the last two 
years’ budgets 

• This report contains only 36% of the £43.7m savings further options will be presented 
to Cabinet in December 

• All stakeholders must continue to look for any savings that can be made and ideas 
continue to be welcomed 

• The Transformation Programme continues to look at the longer term way we deliver 
our services 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



 

 

Recommendations 
 
Council is recommended to: 
 

a) note the work programme timetable contained in Annex A  
 
Annex B – Business efficiencies on which approval to progress immediately is 
sought  
 

b) consider and approve Cabinet’s recommendations to reduce budgets, increase 
income targets and adjust the MTFP as outlined  in Annex B and authorise Officers 
to continue with engagement and implementation processes with partners, key 
stakeholders, employees and Trade Unions as appropriate with a view to achieving 
the agreed changes at the earliest opportunity  
 

Annex C – Internal consultation proposals on which approval to progress 
immediately is sought  
 

c) consider the proposals and approve Cabinet’s recommendations as described in 
Annex C 
 

Annex D – Integration proposals on which approval to progress immediately is 
sought  
 

d) consider the proposals and approve Cabinet’s recommendations as described in 
Annex D 

 
Annex E – External consultation (information) proposals on which approval to 
progress as described is sought 

 
e) consider the proposals and approve Cabinet’s recommendations as described in 

Annex E 
 
f) to note and take account of the risks and mitigating actions outlined in Annexes C, D 

and E 
 

g) to approve and note that where changes and/or savings cannot be achieved through 
deletion of vacant posts, VR or VER then there  may be  a need for compulsory 
redundancies arising from a number of proposals outlined in this report that are 
subject to normal procedures 
 

h) note that Cabinet has been made aware of the need to notify the Department of 
Business Innovation and Skills and Trade Unions to comply with statutory 
requirements regarding redundancies.   

 
How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives? 
 

 Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community   √√√√ 

2 Jobs and Prosperity   √√√√ 

Agenda Item 7

Page 20



 

 

3 Environmental Sustainability   √√√√ 

4 Health and Well-Being   √√√√ 

5 Children and Young People   √√√√ 

6 Creating Safe Communities   √√√√ 

7 Creating Inclusive Communities   √√√√ 

8 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening Local 
Democracy 

  √√√√ 

 
FD 1940/12       What will it cost and how will it be financed? 
 
(A) Revenue Costs 
 
The Council continues to forecast a significant budget gap over the period 2013/14 -2014/15 
requiring estimated savings of at least £43.7m. The Government is expected to announce 
the local government grant settlement for 2013/14 in December 2012. It remains unclear at 
this stage whether the position for 2014/15 will also be clarified at this point. The 
confirmation of external revenue support from Government will provide greater clarity of the 
Council’s saving requirement for next year, but should hopefully give an indication of the 
issues to be addressed in 2014/15. 
 
The level of uncertainty is high because the Government has not completed the consultation 
on the localisation of business rates and the financial implications of new Local Government 
funding regime. Further uncertainty exists around the proposed changes in key grant 
funding especially Early Intervention Grant. 
 
(B) Capital Costs 
 
No specific Capital Investment costs have been identified at this stage. Any identified 
Capital Investment will be subject to a robust business case which demonstrates pay back 
period appropriate to the budget reduction being considered. Any costs arising from 
investment will be factored into the net deliverable savings. 
 
Implications: 
 
The following implications of these proposals have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below: 
 

Legal 1258/2012 
There are no direct legal implications arising from the contents of this report. However in 
the course of each of the individual projects, consultations, options etc. to achieve the 
savings required detailed consideration should be given to the legal, human rights and 
equality implications. Such consideration will also need to be evidenced to ensure that the 
Council's decision making processes are defendable. 

Human Resources 
The proposals contained within this report have a potential impact upon employees and the 
potential for both voluntary and compulsory redundancies.  Individual employees will be 

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



 

 

placed at risk dependant upon Council’s decisions.  It will be necessary for the Authority to 
comply with the duty to consult with recognised Trade Unions and employees and to 
complete as necessary a notification under Section 188 of the Trade Union Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. Also form HR1 to the Department of Business 
Innovation and Skills notifying of redundancies may need to be filed dependent on numbers.  
Full and meaningful consultation should continue to take place with the Trade Unions and 
employees on the matters contained within this report. 

Equality 
1. No Equality Implication      

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated 

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains  

 
Impact on Service Delivery: 
Service implications as currently understood are described within the proposals in this 
report.   
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 
 
Regular and ongoing consultations have taken place with Strategic Directors, Director of 
Built Environment, Director of Street Scene, Director of Young People & Families, Director 
of Older People, Director of Corporate Support Services and Director of Commissioning, 
Head of Corporate Personnel, Head of Corporate Legal Services and Trade Unions. 
 
Further information is contained in the annexes of this report. 
Are there any other options available for consideration? 
Further options are still subject to consultation and it is anticipated that additional options 
will be presented to Cabinet in December.   
Implementation Date for the Decision 
Following November 2012 Council. 
Contact Officers: 
Margaret Rawding, Head of Corporate Finance & ICT 
Tel: 0151 934 4082 
Email: Margaret.rawding@sefton.gov.uk 
Jan McMahon, Head of Transformation Services 
Tel: 0151 934 4431 
Email: jan.mcmahon@sefton.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: Business efficiencies – This document can be viewed on the 
Council’s website via this link: 
http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s43001/Council22November2012Backg
roundDocumentAnnexBTransformationProgrammeReport.doc.pdf 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 
 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 22



 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Introduction/Background 
 

1.1 A budget gap of at least £43.7m is forecast over the next two years with further 
reductions anticipated in following years.  At it’s meeting on 13th September 2012 Cabinet 
took a major step towards the establishment of the budget plan for 2013/14 and 2014/15 
by approving specific budget options for consultation totalling £26 million and identifying 
a number of thematic options which were to be developed further.    

 
1.2 At this meeting Cabinet approved the commencement of consultation and engagement 

activity on a number of specific and thematic options and recommended to Council a 
number of business efficiencies.  In October and November 2012 Cabinet further 
considered a number of the specific options identified in September and recommended a 
number of proposals.  This report now presents the business efficiencies and those 
option recommended by Cabinet.   

 
1.3 The achievement of a balanced budget still remains a very significant challenge for the 

Council. The options and timetable within this report provide Cabinet with further 
business efficiencies and specific options that could contribute to this.  The Council has a 
legal responsibility to set a balanced budget by March 2013.   
 

2. Work Programme & Approach  
 

2.1 In July 2012 Cabinet agreed that the budget planning process which included Officers 
reviewing all service areas and activities should continue in order to meet the budget 
reductions required by Government. This has proven to be a very significant challenge, 
following on from the savings approved in previous years. The consequences on the 
shape, depth and breadth of Council services and the community, alongside other 
changes planned by Government,  are now beginning to be understood and it is clear is 
that reductions of this scale will have a very significant impact.   

 
2.2 The work programme and approach were endorsed by Overview & Scrutiny 

(Performance & Corporate Services) at its meeting on the 18th September 2012.  The 
Committee was satisfied that the approach would ensure that there will be adequate 
opportunity for the public and service users to be consulted and submit their views and 
be acknowledged. 

 
2.3 As this work continues the Council will aim to work with partner organisations to: 

 
•  Resource agreed priorities 
 
•  Define the core purpose of the Council 
 
•  Where possible cushion the impact on the most vulnerable 
 
•  Achieve efficiencies before service reduction or cessation 

 
•   Maintain the longer term strategic view in the context of the current 

financial realities 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



 

 

•  Achieve a balanced and sustainable budget 
 
•  Implement efficient and effective support systems and processes 
 
•  Facilitate community responsibility and capacity to reduce the reliance 

on public sector services 
 

2.4 The approach being taken seeks to; 
 

•  define priorities and identify who our “most vulnerable” are 
 
•  integrate all key support activities to provide efficient, co-ordinated, 

consistent, effective services 
 
•  develop evidence-based and targeted early intervention and prevention 

approaches to improve outcomes and reduce longer term financial 
impacts 

 
• identify those services which the Council must continue to provide as an 

absolute minimum and assess their current efficiency 
 
•  assess and manage risks based on new financial forecasts 
 
•  identify ongoing business efficiencies which will have manageable 

impacts on service quality and quantity 
 
•  further understand where budget reductions will result in reduced 

quantity and/or quality of service 
 
•  maximise the potential of community and Council assets to improve 

outcomes and reduce longer term financial impact 
 
•  assess how locally determined chargeable services could operate on a 

full cost (including all overheads) recovery basis 
 
• assess the community wide cumulative impact of cuts during the 

decision making processes. 
 
2.5 Annex A details the agreed work programme, it is important to note that these 

activities will be supplemented as required in order to ensure that timescales are 
maintained. Council is asked to note the work programme timetable contained in 
Annex A (recommendation a). 

 
3. Business Efficiencies Recommended by Cabinet 
 

3.1 In September 2012 Cabinet considered the business efficiencies (budget reductions/ 
increased income targets) and changes to the MTFP as outlined in Annex B and 
recommended their approval to Council.  Members should be aware that further 
information is available as a background document. 

 
3.2 Council is asked to consider and approve Cabinet’s recommendations to reduce 

budgets, increase income targets and adjust the MTFP as outlined in Annex B and 
authorise Officers to continue with engagement and implementation processes with 

Agenda Item 7

Page 24



 

 

partners, key stakeholders, employees and Trade Unions as appropriate with a view to 
achieving the agreed changes at the earliest opportunity (recommendation b).   

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



 

 

 
4. Specific Options Recommended by Cabinet        
 

4.1 In September 2012 Cabinet agreed the commencement of consultation, engagement 
and informing processes with the community, partners, key stakeholders, employees 
and Trade Unions on a number of specific options.    

 
4.2 In December 2009 the Chief Executive was given delegated authority to agree any 

further Expressions of Interest for Voluntary Early Retirement/Voluntary Redundancy 
(VR/VER).  There are number of options contained in this report were the saving will 
be achieved in part or whole through this process.     

 
4.3 Annex C contains a number of proposals requiring internal consultation.  Council is 

asked to consider these proposals and approve Cabinet’s recommendations as 
described in Annex C (recommendation c).  For clarity Council is asked to consider 
Cabinet’s recommendations and to be mindful of the staffing implications described, 
relevant legislative framework, and weigh up the issues identified, the impact 
information and the mitigating factors for each individual proposal as listed below –  

 
Ref Service Area Change  

E1.1 Cleansing Review of Service 
E2.2 School Admissions 

Service 
Improved access to service, restructuring and income 

E2.3 Educational Psychology Team re-structure and budget re-alignment 

E2.4 Early Intervention & 
Prevention 

Service re-design 

E2.5 Health & Wellbeing Review of operational and management arrangements  

E2.6 People Directorate 
Support Services 

Restructure of Service Development & Support  

E2.7 Vulnerable People Reconfiguration of Care Management Teams 

E3.1 Communications Integration of Communications (employees ) 

E3.2 Governance & Civic 
Services 

Review of Civic Support 

E3.3 Governance & Civic 
Services 

Cessation of Room Booking Service  

E4.1 Corporate Services Learning and Development redesign and improved use of 
technology 

E4.2 Corporate Services  Review of support services 
E4.3 Finance Review of risk management inc externally commissioned 

services 

 
4.4 The Council delivers and commissions a complex range of services, many of which 

are supported by various management structures, specialist and professional support 
teams. The Council will continue to explore opportunities to ensure the efficient and 
effective deployment of specialist skills and knowledge with the aim of reducing costs 
from both management and employee costs through the integration of various teams.  
Cabinet has considered the integration agenda and recommended its progression to 
Council.   

 
4.5 Council is asked to consider the integration options and approve Cabinet’s 

recommendations and as described in Annex D (recommendation d). 
 
4.6  For clarity Council is asked to consider Cabinet’s recommendations and to be mindful 

of the staffing implications described, relevant legislative framework, and weigh up the 

Agenda Item 7

Page 26



 

 

issues identified, the impact information and the mitigating factors for each individual 
proposal as listed below – 

 
Ref Integration  Area 

 

I1.1 Commissioning, Business Intelligence and data 

I1.2 Learning & development, Training, Professional Training and CPD 

I1.3 Financial Assessments 

I1.4 Customer Access Points 

 
 4.7 Annex E contains a number of proposals where information processes have commenced 

and will continue until approved implementation dates, subject to consideration by 
Council. 

 
4.8 Impact Assessments are detailed in Annex E as appropriate.  
 
4.9  All proposals contained in Annex E have been risk assessed by the relevant senior 

officers with mitigating actions identified where possible. 
 
4.10 Council is asked to consider the proposals and approve Cabinet’s recommendations as 

described in Annex E (recommendation e). For clarity Council is asked to be mindful of 
the staffing implications described, relevant legislative framework, and weigh up the 
issues identified, the equality impact assessment information and the mitigating factors 
for each individual proposal as listed below– 

 
Ref Service Area Change  

F1.2 Grounds 
Maintenance  

Recharging grounds maintenance/utility costs for adult 
football/sports users/bowlers 

F1.4 Cemeteries 
and 
Crematoria 

Increase burial and cremation charges 

F2.1 Cleansing Restructure Crews and introduce charge for bulky items 

F4.1 Commissioning Area based committees  

 
 
5. Consultation and Engagement  
 
5.1 As mentioned earlier in the report an initial package of specific budget options was 

approved by Cabinet, 13th
 September 2012, to commence consultation and engagement. 

In relation to these, proposals where agreed by the Public Engagement and Consultation 
Panel on the 21st September 2012 and consultation activity continues with service users, 
the Community, partners, key stakeholders, employees and Trade Unions.  Work is 
progressing in relation to the thematic reviews and proposals for consultation on these 
reviews will be presented to the Consultation and Engagement Panel for approval.   

 

5.2   You Choose, the budget simulator, and the formal consultation on setting the budget, are 
both now live on the website and e-consult.    In order to ensure that all members of the 
public can give us their views a range of consultation events will be held as part of the 
feedback on the Strategic Needs Assessment for Sefton and the consultation on the 
Draft Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Sefton.  This will ensure that local people, 
community groups and stakeholders understand the link between assessing needs, 
identifying priorities whilst having to set a balanced budget.  In addition the details of the 
options, contact details and copies of the surveys’ being undertaken will be made 
available through libraries, One Stop Shops and Town Halls.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



 

 

 

5.3    Media briefings and media releases continue to be issued to sign-post interested parties 
to the full range of options. 

 
5.4   Weekly meetings continue with the Trade Unions. Proposals from departments are in    

different stages of consultation. 
 

 

6.  Equality Act 2010 Duty and Impact Assessments 
 
6.1  As the Council puts actions into place to set a sustainable budget plan for 2013/15 there 

is a need to be clear and precise about our processes, and impact assess potential 
change options/savings, identifying any major risks and mitigating these as far as 
possible. The impact assessments, including any feedback from consultation or 
engagement where appropriate, will be made available to Members when final 
recommendations are presented for a decision. This will ensure that Members make 
decisions in an open minded balanced way showing due regard to the impact of the 
recommendations being presented in compliance with the Equality Act 2010. 

 
7. Risk Management 
 
7.1 The Council continues to regularly review strategic and operational risks and put in place 

measures to manage those risks. 
 
7.2 All proposals contained in Annexes B, C, D and E have been risk assessed by the 

relevant senior officers with mitigating actions identified where possible. 
 
7.3 Council is asked to note the risks and mitigating actions outlined in C, D and E in making 

its recommendation to Council (recommendation f). 
 
7.4 Offices continue to monitor risks and issues, escalating significant risks and issues to 

Cabinet as appropriate. 
 

8. Conclusion  
 
8.1   The Council continues to face significant reduction in Government resources coupled with 

increased demographic and inflationary pressures. A budget gap of at least £43.7m is 
forecast for the two year period 2013/15 with further reductions anticipated in following 
years. The Council must achieve a balanced budget by March 2013 while ensuring that 
relative priority of services is recognised and taken into account. 

 
8.2 The achievement of a balanced budget by 2014/15 still remains a very significant 

challenge for the Council. The options and timetable within the report provide Council 
with business efficiencies and options totalling approximately £16m, this represents only 
36% of the required two year gap.  It must also be stressed that work is ongoing to 
identify the phasing of these options to understand the impact in each of the two years 
under consideration. 

 
8.3 Work is ongoing to identify options which could bridge the remaining gap.  This is 

extremely challenging as the Council has already achieved £64 million of budget 
reduction in the preceding two years.  At this end of the four year period of the 
Governments spending review the Council will have suffered the equivalent of over 40% 
reduction in its core budgets.  The level of change required to meet government funding 

Agenda Item 7

Page 28



 

 

reductions means that while the Council has achieved significant efficiencies it has also 
had to implement service cessation, reduction and increase in charges.  This situation is 
set to continue and worsen over the coming years.  A variety of consultation approaches 
are being used, this will enable the Council to better understand what the community 
values most. 

 
8.4 The scale of the challenge to identify, develop and implement the required reduction over 

the next two years is such that the Council cannot do so without recognising the potential 
need to “invest to save”. The capacity to deliver change on top of increasingly demanding 
day-to-day-work, and against a backdrop of contraction over the last few years, means 
capacity will have to be created to enable the delivery of a programme to transform the 
organisation and enable the Council to deliver prioritised services and support the most 
vulnerable.   

 
8.5 It is too soon to define the details of potential projects or to quantify the costs, timescales 

and the anticipated financial and other benefits. The consultation feedback will enable 
Officers to scope further potential options and projects for Cabinet to consider in the 
future. However, given the scale of the deficit and the need to ensure the Council can 
continue to deliver on the Council’s priorities, the Council needs to ensure that key 
decisions are taken and implemented, or are at least well under way, by the end of 
2013/14. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



 

 

      Annex A 

Timetable Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) 2012/13 

13
th
 September  Cabinet • Consider  

o budget changes not requiring consultation with 
the public nor containing employee  
redundancy implications 

o options requiring internal consultation only 

o public engagement feedback 

o options requiring external consultation 

 

18
th
 September  Overview & Scrutiny 

(Performance & Corporate 

Services) 

• Progress report  

11
th
 October Cabinet • Consider  

o feedback from Overview & Scrutiny (Performance 
& Corporate Services) 

o proposals (internal) 

o Recommend any budget savings to Council for 

implementation 

o Libraries Review options 

6
th
 November Overview & Scrutiny 

(Performance & Corporate 

Services) 

• Progress report 2012/13 approved budget savings 

8
th
 November  Cabinet • Feedback on any consultations which have been 

completed 

• Recommend any budget savings for implementation 

9th November  Public Engagement 

and Consultation Panel 

 

• Consider Public Engagement and Consultation Plans 

22
nd
 November  Council • Consider Cabinet recommendations 

6
th
 December Cabinet • Identify any further options for consultation 

• Update on Government Grant if available 

15
th
 January  Overview & Scrutiny 

(Performance & Corporate 

Services) 

• Progress report 

17
th
 January  Cabinet • Feedback on any consultations which have been 

completed 

• Recommend any budget savings for implementation 

18
th
 January  Public Engagement 

and Consultation Panel 

• Consider Public Engagement and Consultation Plans 

24
th
 January  Council  • Feedback on any consultations which have been 

completed 

• Recommend any budget savings for implementation 

31
st
 January Cabinet • Feedback on any consultations which have been 

completed 

Agenda Item 7

Page 30



 

 

• Recommend any budget savings for implementation 

14
th
 February Cabinet • Recommend any budget savings for implementation 

19
th
 February Overview & Scrutiny 

(Performance & Corporate 

Services) 

• Proposed Revenue Budget for 2013/15 for comment  

28
th
 February  Cabinet  • No budget activity scheduled 

28
th
 February 

2013 

Budget Council • Approval of Budget and Council Tax 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



 

 

 
Annex B 

 
This Annex contains a number of ongoing business efficiencies, increases in income targets 
and changes to the MTFP (C1.1 –C12.5)  

 
Planning 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change 
£000 

C1.1 Building Control Vacant post to be made obsolete and 
restructure 

20 
 

C1.2 Land Searches Land searches income 35 
 

C1.3 Planning DC Commissioned technical advice 28 

C1.4 Planning DC Pre-application advice – charge 6 

C1.5 Planning DC Increase planning app fee in line with national 
legislation 

50 

C1.6 Planning DC Reduce Consultancy 12 

Sub Total 151 

 
Environment 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change 
£000 

C2.1 Environmental 
Health 

Reduced services and supplies 55 

C2.2 Environmental 
Health 

Reduced Eco Centre Costs 15 

C2.3 Licensing  Other Licensing Reserve 2013/4 240 
2014/5 - 240 

Sub Total 70 

 
Investment Programme & Infrastructure  
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change 
£000 

C3.3 Contracted 
Services  

Defer re-instatement of highway management 
funding 

2013/4  800 
2014/5 -800 

C3.4 Network 
Management 

Highway development control income target 40 
 

Sub Total 40 

 
Economic Development 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change 
£000 

C4.1 Tourism Budget restructure and cost savings 67 

Sub Total 67 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 32



 

 

Landscape Services 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change 
£000 

C5.1 Grounds 
Maintenance  

Contractors indexation/eff. discounts  
100 

C5.2 Parks  
 

Fernery/aviary shop  - refine and redefine the 
working practices    

10 
 

C5.3 Cemeteries & 
Crematoria 

Vacant post to be made obsolete 15 
 

C5.4 Parks  
 

Further changes to Parks Management and 
standards in parks 

100 

Sub Total 225 

 
Direct Services 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change 
£000 

C6.1 Commercial 
Waste  

Increased income 100 
 

C6.2 Public 
Conveniences 

Public conveniences reviewed 40 
 

C6.3 School 
Crossings 

Review crossing service and transport costs 40 
 

C6.4 Catering Other catering activity (income target) 100 

C6.5 Vehicle 
Management 
and 
maintenance 

MOT testing (income target) 50 
 

C6.6 Security Force  Security Force & Careline Service (income 
target) 

200 
 

C6.7 Recycling Defer introduction of plastic and cardboard 
household collections  

2013/4 1,000 
2014/5 - 600 

C6.8 Recycling Budget re-alignment 200 

Sub Total 1,130 

 
Learning & Support 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change £000 

C7.1 Complementary 
Education 

Budget re-alignment 100 

C7.2 Pupil 
Attendance 

Teaching element - Budget re-alignment 65 

C7.3 Pupil 
attendance and 
welfare 

School absence prevention and action – 
make vacant posts obsolete 

60 
 

C7.4 Education Speech and Language Therapy - Budget re-
alignment 

95 

C7.5 School 
Improvement 
team 

Premises, supplies and services - Budget re-
alignment 

50 

Sub Total 370 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 33



 

 

 
Targeted Support for Children & Families 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change 
£000  

C8.1 Cease Connexions post delivered within Youth 
Offending Service 

24 
 

C8.2 Make vacant sessional worker posts obsolete 54 
 

C8.3 

Youth 
Offending 
Service 
 

Make vacant parenting co-ordinator post 
obsolete 

43 

C8.4 Early 
Intervention & 
Prevention 

Make vacant research and information post 
obsolete  

28 

C8.5 Early 
Intervention & 
Prevention 

Re-organisation of disabled children database 
workload  

20 

Sub Total 169 

 
Vulnerable People 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change £000 

C9.1 Drug Service Single point of assessment Budget Re-
alignment  

224 
 

C9.2 Adult Social 
Care 

Budget re-alignment  120 
 

Sub Total 344 

 
Health & Wellbeing 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change £000  

C10.1 Leisure operations –  improved 
membership retention and payment 
methods 

200 

 

C10.2 Eze Fitness contract – terminate 73 
 

C10.3 Leisure operations – increase in income 150 
 

C10.4 Reduce supplies and services budget 23 
 

C10.5 

Sports & 
Recreational 
Services 

Reduce revenue growth for utility charges 200 
 

Sub Total 646 

 
Commissioning 
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change £000 

C11.1 Governance & 
Civic Services 

Shared services elections resilience v 
future cost implications 

0 
 

C11.2 Communications Improved procurement of council wide 
communications activity 

100 
 

Sub Total 100 

Agenda Item 7

Page 34



 

 

 
Corporate Support Services  
 

Ref Service Area Change proposal Proposed 
Change £000  

C12.1 Learning and 
Development 

Budget re-alignment  80 
 

C12.2 Housing 
Benefits 

Increased housing benefit grant from 
reduced error rates 

500 

C12.3 Finance Reduced external audit fees, recoverable 
VAT & Improved cash management – 
pension costs 

1,300 

C12.4 Finance Printing and publications 20 

C12.5 Finance Cash limit non pay budgets 6,468 

Sub Total 8,368 

 

  
Total 11,680 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 35



 

 

Annex C 
Council is asked to consider the proposals contained in this annex and approve Cabinet’s 
recommendations as described below  
 
Ref Service Area Change  Recommendation to Council 

E1.1 Cleansing Review of Service • agree the outcomes of the review 
undertaken and approve the change in 
working practices 

• approve a budget reduction of £300k 

• note that changes in staffing levels will 
be achieved through the VR/VER 
process.    

E2.2 School 
Admissions 
Service 

Improved access to 
service, 
restructuring and 
income 

• approve the implementation of identified 
efficiency savings  

• approve a budget reduction of £40k 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation 

E2.3 Educational 
Psychology 

Team re-structure 
and budget re-
alignment 

• approve the budget restructure to deliver 
a saving of £50k 

• note that changes in staffing levels will 
be achieved through the VR/VER 
process.    

E2.4 Early 
Intervention & 
Prevention 

Service re-design • approve a budget reduction of £332k 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation. 

E2.5 Health & 
Wellbeing 

Review of 
operational and 
management 
arrangements  

• approve a budget reduction of £320k in 
2013/14 and budget adjustment of -
£125k in 2014/15 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation  
 

E2.6 People 
Directorate 
Support 
Services 

Restructure of 
Service 
Development & 
Support  

• note that changes to processes and 
working practices will seek to improve 
efficiency and effectiveness across 
services 

• approve a budget reduction of £350k 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 

Agenda Item 7

Page 36



 

 

employee/trade union consultation 

E2.7 Vulnerable 
People 

Reconfiguration of 
Care Management 
Teams 

• note that changes to processes and 
working practices will seek to improve 
efficiency and effectiveness across 
services 

• approve a budget reduction of £270k 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation  
 

E3.1 Communication
s 

Integration of 
Communications 
(employees ) 

• note that changes to processes and 
working practices will seek to improve 
efficiency and effectiveness across 
services 

• approve a budget reduction of £100k 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation 

E3.2 Governance & 
Civic Services 

Review of Civic 
Support 

• approve the budget reduction of £60k in 
resources available to support the office 
of the Mayor 

• note the impact on the office of the 
Mayor 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation  

E3.3 Governance & 
Civic Services 

Cessation of Room 
Booking Service  

• approve the cessation of external room 
booking services for Bootle, Southport 
and Waterloo Town Halls 

• approve a budget reduction of £20k 

• note that this will be communicated to 
communities and partners 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation  

E4.1 Corporate 
Services 

Learning and 
Development 
redesign and 
improved use of 
technology 

• note that changes to processes and 
working practices will seek to improve 
efficiency and effectiveness across 
services 

• approve a budget reduction of £150k 

• approve the reconfiguration of teams 

Agenda Item 7

Page 37



 

 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation  
 

E4.2 Corporate 
Services 

 Review of support 
services 

• note that changes to processes and 
working practices will seek to improve 
efficiency and effectiveness across 
services 

• approve a budget reduction of £362k 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation  
 

E4.3 Finance Review of risk 
management inc 
externally 
commissioned 
services 

• note that changes to processes and 
working practices will seek to improve 
efficiency and effectiveness across 
services 

• approve a budget reduction of £80k 

• authorise Officers to implement the 
actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the issue of 
relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan 
period, subject to ongoing 
employee/trade union consultation  
 

 
Place 

 
Ref Service Area Change option Proposed 

Change £000  

E1.1 Cleansing Review of Service 300 

Sub Total 300 

People 
 

Ref Service Area Change option Proposed 
Change £000  

E2.2 School Admissions 
Service 

Improved access to service, 
restructuring and income 

40 

E2.3 Educational 
Psychology 

Team re-structure and budget re-
alignment 

50 

E2.4 Early Intervention & 
Prevention 

Service re-design 332 

E2.5 Health & Wellbeing Review of operational and management 
arrangements  
 

2013/4 320 
2014/15 -125 

E2.6 Commissioning Restructure of Service Development & 
Support  

350 

E2.7 Vulnerable People Reconfiguration of Care Management 270 

Agenda Item 7

Page 38



 

 

Teams 

Sub Total 1,237 

 
Commissioning 
 

Ref Service Area Change option Proposed 
Change £000 

E3.1 Communications Integration of Communications (employees ) 100 
E3.2 Governance & 

Civic Services 
Review of Civic Support 60 

E3.3 Governance & 
Civic Services 

Cessation of Room Booking Service  20 

Sub Total 180 

 

Corporate Support Services 
 

Ref Service 
Area 

Change option Proposed 
Change 
£000  

E4.1 Corporate 
Services 

Learning and Development redesign and improved 
se of technology 

150 

E4.2 Corporate 
Services 

 Review of support services 362 

E4.3 Finance Review of risk management inc externally 
commissioned services 

80 

Sub Total 592 

 

 2,309 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



 

 

Place 
 
Direct Services E1.1 
 

Service Description: Cleansing Services  
 
The Cleansing Services Section is responsible for both Street Cleansing and Refuse 
Collection.  It provides a comprehensive cleansing service for residential, retail, tourist and 
visitor areas, as well as all highways, pavements and litter bins.  In addition, the service 
provides an Alternating Weekly Collection service for wheeled bins and a Sack Collection 
for other properties, as well as commercial waste and skip services, and civic amenities and 
clinical waste collections.   
 
Every road and pavement in the Borough is cleansed over a twelve month period.  
Cleansing operatives using manual carts clean 3km each per day and each of the five 
mechanical sweepers we have cover some 15km per day.  The night time arterial route 
cleansing programme cleans 15km per night on both sides of the carriageway. 
 
There are 1,275 litter bins in the Borough and we utilise 3 Rapid Response teams to deal 
with graffiti, fly tipping, and cleansing problems in three zones across the Borough. 
 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the following 
change –  
 
A borough wide review has been undertaken across the Cleansing Services Section as a 
whole to identify, quantify and develop an operational model which will deliver necessary 
outputs, but do so using fewer resources.  This approach has also sought to concentrate 
resources on areas of greatest need as opposed to all areas receiving a similar amount of 
attention over a year. 
 
It is also planned to reposition operational responsibility for various functions so that savings 
can be generated from economies of scale, new technologies, and new working practices.  
  

Rationale for service change proposal – 
The rationale for the proposals fall under a number of categories. 
 
New Technologies: 
There are areas in the borough where population and housing density is less, which in turn 
leads to less concentration of litter, fly tipping and blown waste.  In these areas we currently 
utilise the same resource to cleanse the area, and yet the volumes collected are 
substantially less than the more dense areas.  As such, it is possible utilise new 
technologies, such as electric vehicles, to cover far wider areas and litter pick on a ‘spot’ 
basis.  It has also proved possible to amend practices relating to litter bin collection.  New 
bin utilising standard ‘wheelie bins’ inside provide a larger capacity and also enable the 
collection to be undertaken by refuse wagons as opposed to a small ‘cage tipper’.  This 
further allows existing resources to be amended to produce further savings. 
Operational Responsibilities: 
There have previously been distinct operational boundaries between a number of services 
offered by the Council, which in the main relate to the operation and presentation of similar 
functions.  The presentation of public facilities and areas currently involves street cleansing, 
landscaping, highways, tourism, parks, repairs, network services, refuse, and a range of 
‘external’ functions such as maintenance contractors.  By merging some of these functions it 
is possible to do at least the same with less resource.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 40



 

 

 
Staffing Issues: 
The introduction of new technologies and working practices will result in a reduction in the 
number of personnel to deliver the services.  There are currently a large number of staff 
from across different sections within the Cleansing Service who wish to be considered for 
VR/VER.  It is proposed to allow some 15 members of staff to leave the organisation which 
will in turn provide additional savings.  The remaining workforce will be re-trained and/or 
upskilled as required to undertake the tasks required.  This process will be funded in 
2013/14 from savings from the staffing costs of those who leave.  This in turn will provide an 
additional saving in 2014/15. 
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – 
Cleansing functions will still be undertaken across the Borough.  However, the remaining 
resources will be utilised across all residential areas, and will also be targeted to areas of 
high demand and areas of ‘special consideration’, such as commercial sectors, visitor 
destinations, etc.  It is also proposed to enhance the ‘rapid response’ section of the service 
to provide additional resource and flexibility during periods of peak demand or areas 
requiring additional input due to local problems. 
In addition to the proposed reductions, a new ‘volunteer scheme’ is being implemented.  
This will allow residents and groups to organise ‘litter picks’ or adopt specific areas to assist 
with cleansing function.  Equipment will be provided free of charge on a loan basis to 
individuals and groups.  
 

Impact of Service Change –  
 

Service Users –  There should be little change in the cleanliness of any area in the 
Borough in relation to litter assuming that public behaviour in relation to dropping litter 
remains as it is now and does not deteriorate further.  However, the combination of ‘spot 
cleansing’ practices and a reduction of staffing resource will reduce the amount of physical 
sweeping of pavements which is currently undertaken.  To the untrained eye the effect of 
the changes may be minimal.  However, there may be a rise in detritus found in some 
areas.  As the changes are introduced the service will be adapted to deal with areas where 
the amount of detritus is rising.  However, this can only be determined after the proposed 
changes are made.  If detritus becomes so significant that people with disabilities cannot 
pass this will be responded to in accordance with day to day working procedures.  In the 
meantime, residents may see an increase of detritus in their local area. 
 

Partners –  N/A 
 

Council – The Council will still meet its requirements under the Environmental Protection 
Act.  However, perceived levels of cleanliness may be affected, especially in the short term. 
 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
Type  Inform               Consult internal              
 
Proposed Timeline - This proposal is based upon accepting a number of VR/VER requests 
from staff and remodelling the services around those left via retraining and reorganisation.  
As such, all interested staff have so far applied for VR/VER.  Any additional requests arising 
from staff meetings and consultation meetings will be considered accordingly. 

Equality Impact Assessment –   The Quality Assurance group in looking at this proposal 
recognises that it is a change to working practices and is satisfied that there is no change to 
service delivery for service users. As a consequence there will be no equality implication to 
this change.  Officers will continue to comply with HR policies and procedures.  This will 
include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate Services.  

Legislation Considered - The requirements of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 have 

X X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 41



 

 

been considered in the development of this proposal.   

Risks & Mitigating Actions – There is a risk that levels of cleanliness across the Borough 
will be noticeably poorer, especially in relation to detritus.  However, during the 
implementation phase of 2013/14 additional resource will be allocated to the ‘rapid 
response’ services to allow areas of concern to be dealt with.  As detritus build up patterns 
are identified and established it may be possible to further amend cleansing regimes to 
reflect the higher demand in certain areas. 
 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£3,872,150 
Staffing:  129 
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14 (#):         £250,000   Full Year 
Additional Saving 2014/15 (#): £  50,000     Full Part Year 
Investment Required: None 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk:  15   (All VR/VER)  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 42



 

 

 

People 
Children & Young People 
E2.2 

Service Description: School Admissions, Appeals and Student Support 
School admissions. 
 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the following 
change – Implement efficiency saving by increasing online admissions and include income 
from services for Academies.  
 

Rationale for service change proposal – There are efficiencies to be made through 
restructuring once the new admissions code comes into force and by increasing on-line 
applications. The restructuring may involve reduction in staff, re-grading or changes in 
contracts.  

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – Direction and 
encourage users to access on-line. 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – Minimal Partners – None Council – This proposal links to the Financial 
Assessment integration proposal  
   

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type  Inform             Consult internal             
 
Proposed Timeline Consultation continues to take place in accordance with HR procedures.  
An initial meeting with staff was held 5th September; those unable to attend were informed 
by alternative methods.  Staff were invited to ask questions and discussions covered ideas 
for implementation of the savings.  A further meetings were held throughout October and 
any remodelling of the service will be taken forward jointly with all staff. 
 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – Other access channels will remain available for those 
without access to the internet, including telephone and face to face contact.  Officers will 
comply with HR policies and procedures.  This will include regular HR monitoring reports to 
Corporate Services. 
 

Legislation Considered - School Standards and Framework Act 1998; School Admissions 
Code and School Admission Appeals Code 2012; Education Act 1996; Education and 
Inspections Act 2006; Education Act 2011. 
 

Risks & Mitigating Actions – This is a demand led service so Officers will continue to 
prioritise the workload of the team. Other access channels will remain available.  Should the 
additional income from Academies reduce or cease the service may be reconfigured to 
reflect the change in workload. 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£314,000 
  

Saving 2013/14 (#):   £ 40,000  (includes £10,000 income)                 
Full Year 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: 2 - note that where 
changes and/or savings cannot be achieved through deletion 
of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may be a need for 
compulsory redundancies arising from this proposal 
 

 

x X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



 

 

E2.3 

Service Description:  Education Psychology Team  
Statutory requirement for any new and reviewed statement to have an Educational 
Psychologist statement. 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the following 
change – Partial budget re-alignment of funding for the above service.   

Rationale for service change proposal – Further efficiencies identified through 
restructuring service and budget re-alignment to Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). 
The saving is being made via a restructure across vulnerable pupil support services – and it 
is expected that there will be no redundancy within the EP service. 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – None 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – None Partners – None Council – None   
 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type Inform             Consult             
 
Proposed Timeline: An initial meeting with staff was held 5th September; those unable to 
attend were informed by alternative methods.  Staff were invited to ask questions and 
discussions covered ideas for implementation of the savings.  Further meetings is planned 
for all future staff meetings already scheduled and any restructure of the service will be 
taken forward jointly with all staff. 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment –  
The Quality Assurance group in looking at this proposal recognises that it is a budget re-
alignment and is satisfied that there is no change to service delivery for service users. As a 
consequence there will be no equality implication to this change. 
Officers continue to comply with HR policies and procedures.  This will include regular HR 
monitoring reports to Corporate Services. 

Legislation Considered - Statutory requirement for any new and reviewed statement to 
have an Educational Psychologist statement. Education Act 1996, amended by Education 
Act 1997, School Standards and Framework Act 1998 Special Education Needs and 
Disability Act 2001. (2001 legislation was amended in January 2002.)  Education Act 2011 - 
New requirement for all exclusion hearings to have input regarding SEN. 

Risks & Mitigating Actions –  
All statutory responsibilities will continue to be met as this proposal is a recharge against the 
DSG and a re-organisation of work therefore no risks.  The saving will be made through a 
restructure of the Vulnerable Pupils team which will reduce the cost on the DSG and will 
enable funding to be re-aligned. 
 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£575,000 
  

Saving 2013/14 (#):                     £50,000   Full Year 
           
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: 1 VR (in process) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 44



 

 

E2.4 

Service Description: Early Intervention & Prevention Services (EIP) 0-19 
The current EIP services are under review and it is proposed to redesign a fully integrated 
model that will deliver specific targeted and specialist interventions. 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the following 
change – Restructure the management and administration of services across the current 
universal/disability/targeted and statutory provision. This includes Aiming High Service, 
Common Assessment Framework Team, 11+ Team and general management and admin. 

Rationale for service change proposal – Integrated leadership and support services will 
produce a culture change in both vision and practice.  Reduction at this stage will still 
enable the remodelling of Early Intervention and Prevention to take place. Potential 
developments within the service that have been suggested by staff include: 
 

• Private / commercial funding of our work supporting young offenders involved in 
Reparation activity 

• Shared services….youth service, YOT across Merseyside  

• Reduce management costs by merging Youth Service, YOT, ASB and create IYSS 
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – Management and 
administrative structures will be rationalised across services to foster full integrated 
practices.   

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – operational arrangements related to this service will change but should 
improve practice long term. 
Partners – May impact on current relationships and historical practice. 
Council – Initially reduce management capacity but in the long term will lead to better 
integration.   

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type Inform             Consult             
 
Proposed Timeline: Staff consultations regarding option, role and structure continued 
throughout September 2012.  Work has started to examine job descriptions, team structure, 
and identification of the staff at risk.  Staff are being consulted with regarding job 
descriptions in November 2012 and if applicable appointments confirmed in December 
2012.  The new structure and roles will commence in January 2013 with notice periods, if 
applicable, from January to March 2013. 
 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – The Quality Assurance group in looking at this option 
recognises that it is a positive change and is satisfied that service user needs will continue 
to be met.  Officers will comply with HR policies and procedures.  This will include regular 
HR monitoring reports to Corporate Services.  

Legislation Considered – N/A 

Risks & Mitigating Actions – We will need to maximise leadership for remaining staff in 
order to deliver the significant statutory early help change agenda whilst reducing cost. 
Limited capacity to support inspections and improve quality - All statutory responsibilities will 
continue to be met.  Restructure may identify skills gap which will be addressed through an 
agreed training programme.  

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£8,232,900  
  

Saving 2013/14 (#):                   £140,000   Full / Part Year 
Additional Saving 2014/15 (#): £192,700  Full / Part Year 
Investment Required: £TBC              
Indicative Number of  Staff at Risk: up to 8 employees - 

x X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



 

 

note that where changes and/or savings cannot be achieved 
through deletion of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may 
be a need for compulsory redundancies arising from this 
proposal 
 

 
Health & Wellbeing 
E2.5 
 

Service Description:   Recreation & Cultural Services – Review all operational and 
management arrangements (Leisure Activity Review)  
 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to  implementing the 
following change –  
Review all management arrangements within the Recreation & Cultural service, to include 
operations and development functions and remodel where appropriate and identify further 
efficiencies.  This includes freezing the recruitment against vacancy posts.  As detailed as 
follows: 
 

• Delete posts of Head of Library and Information (£65,000) 

• Delete post of Principal manager Community Cohesion (£36,000) 

• Delete post of Principal manager in Service Development (£44,000) 

• Freeze (for one year) the vacant posts for Wellbeing Service Manager and Service 
Manager for Recreation and Culture (£62,000 and £59,000) 

• General management functions in Sport and Recreation to remodel following the 
Leisure Activity Review (£50,000) 

 

Rationale for service change proposal – Look to further streamline all operational and 
management arrangements.  This will also include exploration of achieving further income 
generation to offset savings required. 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – Until remodelling has 
been identified it is difficult to determine what service activities will be effected. 
 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – Less operational management presence at Leisure Centres/ sports 
events. 
Partners – N/A 
Council – Efficiency saving, with the consequence that the ability to respond to requests for 
service, complaints, councillor enquiries, corporate deadlines will be significantly reduced. 
  

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type Inform             Consult internal staff           Engage            Partnership   
 
Proposed Timeline: Consultation continues to take place in accordance with HR 
procedures. 
A series of initial meetings were held on 4th September at Merton House, 5th September at 
Dunes Leisure Centre and 6th September at Meadows and Bootle Leisure Centres. 
Follow up meetings were held within week commencing 8th October and continuing in 
November. 
 

Equality Impact Assessment – The Quality Assurance group in looking at this option and 
is satisfied that there will be no impact service users.  Officers continue to comply with HR 
policies and procedures.  This will include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate 

x x 

Agenda Item 7

Page 46



 

 

Services.  

Legislation Considered - N/A 

Risks & Mitigating Actions –  
Risk – Potential increase in risks for the Council with a further reduced Management 
presence. i.e.: Increase in complaints, potential failure to apply procedures etc. 
 
Mitigations – undertake a review of duties and responsibilities of staff that remain to mitigate 
some of the operational risks.   
 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£ 
Staffing:  
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14 (#):    £   320,000              Full Year 
Additional Saving 2014/15 (#): £ Reduced by £125,00 if 
frozen posts recruited against             
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk:   1 compulsory, plus 
combination of VR’s and vacancies  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



 

 

E2.6 

Service Description: People Directorate Service Support & Development Services 
Service Development & Support Services includes the following teams:  
Business intelligence & planning; business/administrative support; ICT support; strategic 
support; Direct Payments support; Social Care Customer Access; Adult Safeguarding; 
Children’s Policy; Management & Admin P.A’s; Children’s and Adults administration; 
Reception Services; Family Information Service; Children with Disabilities/Adults with 
Learning Disability information services; Financial Visiting Officers; Complaints/Advocacy; 
LSCB admin; Access to Files and Court Liaison  . A review of these services will be 
undertaken to identify efficiency savings and more economical/effective ways of working. 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the following 
change – A review and restructuring of all Service Development & Support services to 
deliver a £350,000 reduction in costs. 

Rationale for service change proposal – 
The majority of these functions, within the People Directorate, were brought together in 
2011/12 through the senior management restructure. Together with the ongoing update of 
ICT and business support systems, this enables a further review of the functions and 
resultant efficiency savings.  

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – The review will 
encompass all areas listed above. Activity to change, stop or reduce to be confirmed. 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users - Some support services do interact directly with service users and might be 
considered front-line services (e.g. area finance and direct payments). Other support 
services interact heavily with service providers (e.g. commissioning & contracts). 
Partners – Reduced capacity in business development & support services may impact on 
partners where they are reliant upon those services for information.  
Council – Reduced capacity in business development & support services may impact on 
other parts of the Council where they are reliant upon those services for information.  
 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Inform             Consult (internal)             
 
Proposed Timeline: Proposed Timeline: Initial meeting with staff was held 5th September; 
those unable to attend were informed by alternative methods. All staff were invited to ask 
questions and to offer ideas for implementation of the savings.  Following the publication of 
the report further discussions were held with individuals and teams between the 14th and 
21st September. On the 26th September correspondence sent to all staff offering further 
opportunity to discuss any questions that they may have and inviting ideas on how the 
saving could be made, that may reduce the risk to staff.  Further meetings are planned 
throughout the year and any remodelling of the service will be taken forward jointly with all 
staff. 
Consultation continues with Trade Unions and staff to consider options for restructuring of 
teams within the services. 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public. 

Equality Impact Assessment – Officers continue to comply with HR policies and 
procedures.  This will include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate Services. 

Legislation Considered – N/A 

Risks & Mitigating Actions – NA 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£tbc Staffing:  
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14:  £258,000          Full Year 
Saving 2014/15:  £92,000 
                
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: 11.5 FTE posts - note 

X x 

Agenda Item 7

Page 48



 

 

that where changes and/or savings cannot be achieved 
through deletion of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may 
be a need for compulsory redundancies arising from this 
proposal. 

 

 
Vulnerable People 
E2.7 

Service Description: Care Management  
There are currently 98 social workers within Adult Social Care Teams. 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to  implementing the 
following change – A reconfiguration of care management teams  

Rationale for service change proposal – 
To re-assess and refocus social work posts as part of a phased approach to ensure 
continuous improvement and value for money within Adult Social Care.  
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – 
A reconfiguration of care management teams, workloads and the implementation of 
Integrated Adults Systems (IAS) will negate the need to replace these posts.  

Impact of Service Change – 
Service Users – Implementation of IAS will mitigate the reduction of social workers. 
Partners – None. 
Council – Minimal reconfiguration of case loads and the implementation of IAS will assist to 
mitigate losses.   

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type Inform             Consult (internal)                          
 
Proposed Timeline: Reconfiguration to commence (subject to Council approval) with a 
completion date of March 2013.  Internal consultation continues in accordance with HR 
procedures. 
Initial meetings held on 5th and 6th September 2012 with a standard item on all staff meeting 
agendas – next full specific meeting will be held in November 2012. 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – The Quality Assurance group in looking at this option and 
is satisfied that service user needs will continue to be met.  Officers will comply with HR 
policies and procedures.  This will include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate 
Services.  

Legislation Considered – The Council will continue to meet statutory requirements.  

Risks & Mitigating Actions – Reconfiguration and reconfiguration of care management 
teams will go someway to mitigate this change. The reconfiguration will involve changing 
the way people access assessments and reviews of their on-going care and support. This 
will involve on-line assessments, larger generic social work teams and more flexible 
recording through the use of technology. 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£2,728,000 
 
Staffing:  
 
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14 (#):               £  270,000               Full  
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: 8-10 - note that where 
changes and/or savings cannot be achieved through deletion 
of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may be a need for 
compulsory redundancies arising from this proposal 
 

 
 
 

X X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



 

 

 
 
Commissioning 
E3.1 

Service Description: Communications (Integration of Communications Staff) 
Categorisation: All communications/marketing officers within the authority are currently 
being integrated under one management structure to create a core function to service the 
entire Council.  

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the following 
change – That a reduction of the number of staff working under the new integrated service 
could be achieved to meet the needs of a changing Council.  

Rationale for service change proposal – 
As the new Communications Strategy will deliver a comprehensive and targeted 
communications, marketing and advertising function for the entire council it is envisaged 
that activity will be co-ordinated in such a way which could lead to a possible reduction in 
the number of people currently delivering activity in service-areas. 
As the integration is not yet complete it is difficult for the true efficiencies to be revealed but 
it is estimate that a revised structure could drive savings of around £100k in staff costs. 
 
No firm details of how this saving can be achieved have yet been finalised, however a 
proposed draft structure has been drawn up to reflect a reduction in staffing costs. This 
structure has been shared with the unions and the communications staff involved in the 
process and any potential for VR/VER or changes to working practices will be explored 
ahead of compulsory redundancies.   

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – Reduced capacity to 
market and advertise some council services – although potential mitigation through new 
working methods and tighter co-ordination and prioritisation of activity. 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – Potential reduction in the amount of information available about council 
services.  
Partners – Potential reduction in the amount of information available about council services. 
Potential loss of co-promotion/management of joint projects.  
Council – Potential reduction in the amount of information available about council services, 
potential impact on income streams because of reduced marketing activity.    

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform             Consult (Internal) 
  Partnership     
Proposed Timeline: 6 months Consultation will take place in accordance with HR 
procedures Implementation: (April 1, 2013) 
Updates on the integration process have been ongoing with staff and there have been three 
meetings with service-managers and direct face-to-face updates on the process with the 
staff concerned, including a soft-consultation meeting and full update on proposed draft 
structure. Several appearances have been made at the regular union update meetings and 
individual union and employee issues have been responded to. Frequent email updates 
have also been sent to the staff in scope and any queries responded to. The proposed draft 
job descriptions have been compiled and detailed discussions with HR colleagues have 
taken place. The process of consulting on the structure is ongoing. 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – The Quality Assurance group in looking at this option is 
satisfied that there is no impact on service users. Officers continue to comply with HR 
policies and procedures.  This will include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate 

X 
x 

Agenda Item 7

Page 50



 

 

Services. 

Legislation Considered – Statutory guidance on public/legal notices etc. The 2011 
Government Guidelines for Local Authority Publicity.   

Risks & Mitigating Actions – Loss of information streams for residents, partners etc – 
mitigated by looking at delivering comms activity in a different way – e.g. digital by default. 
Risk of under achieving potential saving as further work is needed to identify all funding 
streams for existing staff. Saving may already be identified elsewhere in service areas. 
Potential loss of income for some service areas due to any reduction in marketing activity, 
however such income generators would be a prioritised area of activity within the new 
arrangements. 

2012/13 Service Budget: £ 
Staffing:  
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14 (#):               £  100,000      Full / Part 
Year 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: TBC note that where 
changes and/or savings cannot be achieved through 
deletion of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may be a 
need for compulsory redundancies arising from this 
proposal 
 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 51



 

 

E3.2 
 

Service Description:   Review of Civic Support   
To restructure the office which supports the Mayor. 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to  implementing the 
following change –  
To restructure the Service in conjunction with savings option E3.3 (Use of Council meeting 
rooms) – this is a linked savings option as the income derived from room bookings is used 
to supplement the budgets for Mayoral activity. 

Rationale for service change proposal – To reduce costs. 
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – There will be less 
resource available for civic hospitality and twinning.  Reconfiguration of staffing structure. 
Greater reliance on the Mayor’s Charity Committees would be needed to organise the 
Mayoral Ball, support for the charity fund would be reduced, cancellation of twinning 
programme, reduction of mayoral hospitality programme.  

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users –   None. 
Partners – None.   
Council – A decision of the Council on the budget would be sufficient to reduce the civic 
hospitality programme, although engagement with partners and twinned towns would need 
to take place regarding reduced involvement. 
 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform             Consult (Internal)            
   
 
Proposed Timeline:  Consultation with staff will commence immediately after the option is 
accepted.  Consultation will take place in accordance with HR procedures 
 
Implementation: Implementation will take place following the 3 month consultation period. 
 
Soft consultation with staff regarding budget option, with view to their views on proposals 
and any alternatives to budget savings.  Explanation of process should budget option be 
chosen and probable timescales for implementation. 
 
Trade unions informed of option and implications to staff. 
 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – Officers will comply with HR policies and procedures.  This 
will include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate Services.  

Legislation Considered - s 2 of the LGA 1972 

Risks & Mitigating Actions –  

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£ £417,000 
 
Staffing: 2 
 
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14 (#):                     £60,000               Full Year 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: 1 - note that where 
changes and/or savings cannot be achieved through deletion 
of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may be a need for 
compulsory redundancies arising from this proposal 
 

 
 

 X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 52



 

 

E3.3 
 

Service Description:   Cessation of Room Bookings Service  
To cease the provision of a room bookings service for Bootle, Southport and Waterloo Town 
Halls. 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to  implementing the 
following change –  
To cease the provision of a room bookings service – no external organisations will be able 
to book meeting rooms at the above venues and internal meetings will be booked using an 
Outlook diary. 

Rationale for service change proposal – The costs of providing a room bookings service 
have outweighed the external income generated for 2 years.  Income from other council 
departments (together with a profit element) has been achieved.  This income has been 
used to supplement the Mayor’s hospitality programme.  It is therefore essential that this 
option is considered in conjunction with Option E3.2 (Review of Civic Support). 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – No external 
organisations will be able to book meeting rooms at Bootle, Waterloo and Southport Town 
Halls.  Weddings and Civil Partnerships will still be conducted there but organised by the 
Registration Service. 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users –   No external bookings will be taken for meetings 
Partners – No external bookings will be taken for meetings  
Council – Internal meetings will be booked using an Outlook diary system. 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform                  Consult (Internal)             
   
Proposed Timeline:  Consultation continues to take place in accordance with HR 
procedures 
Implementation: Implementation will take place following the 3 month consultation period. 
 
Soft consultation with staff regarding budget option, with view to their views on proposals 
and any alternatives to budget savings.  Explanation of process should budget option be 
chosen and probable timescales for implementation. 
 
Trade unions informed of option and implications to staff. 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – The Quality Assurance group in looking at this option and 
is satisfied that there are other venues available to meet community need through the 
voluntary sector. Officers continue to comply with HR policies and procedures.  This will 
include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate Services.  

Legislation Considered - NA 

Risks & Mitigating Actions – Service Users will be signposted to other community facilities 
within the voluntary sector which in turn will support the voluntary sector to generate income 
from new bookings. 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£ £417,000 
Staffing: 2 
 

Saving 2013/14 (#):                     £20,000               Full Year 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: 2 - note that where 
changes and/or savings cannot be achieved through deletion 
of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may be a need for 
compulsory redundancies arising from this proposal 
 

x X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 53



 

 

Corporate Support Services  
E4.1 
 

Learning & Development   

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the following 
change – To reassess and refocus the Learning & Development Service to ensure that the 
Council continues to demonstrate value for money in this area and secure continuous 
improvement throughout the organisation. By doing this we will seek to build capacity and 
capability across the service to better support the organisation in the delivery of the 
Council’s priorities.  
This will include challenging existing spending levels focusing on the identification of 
achievable and sustainable financial savings through a range of approaches including new 
ways of working, service re-configuration, structural change and opportunities for improved 
business processes and efficiencies, through better use of e-learning and effective 
commissioning. 

Rationale for service change proposal - The most basic reasons for providing learning 
and development are to ensure that Council employees are able to effectively carry out their 
current role and are prepared for change.  It is recognised that employees are more aware 
of Council strategies and objectives and the need for learning and development 
opportunities to support delivery of these. 
A mixture of potential voluntary redundancies/voluntary early retirements, reduction in hours 
have been identified and are being considered plus known employee departures. Officers 
have also identified reductions in the supplies and services budget.  Officers will continue to 
explore income opportunities. 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce There is potential to 
reduce the current levels of face to face service deliver in areas of Learning & Development 
activity.    

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – N/A 
Partners – Changes to delivery methods may impact on external providers this will be 
managed through normal Council procedures. 
Council – Change in delivery mechanisms for Learning & Development.    

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
Type Inform             Consult (Internal)             
     
Proposed Timeline: Initial briefings with staff have taken place and consultation will 
continue in accordance with HR procedures.  In terms of Learning and Development, 
savings options are as follows: 
It is anticipated that the first £75,000 saving will be taken by one vacancy which will not be 
filled), voluntary redundancies and a saving in supplies and services.  The further £75,000 
saving achievement is under further consultation. 
 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public. 

Equality Impact Assessment – The Quality Assurance group in looking at this option and 
is satisfied that there is no impact external service users. Officers will comply with HR 
policies and procedures.  This will include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate 
Services. 

Legislation Considered – N/A 

Risks & Mitigating Actions – Options are still being developed across the Council so this 
change will need to be managed in parallel to the ongoing decision making process.  
Effective programme management will support the risk management process.  

2012/13 Service Budget: Saving 2013/14:                     £   75,000   Full Year 

x X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 54



 

 

£1.246M  
Staffing: 17.73 FTE’s  
 

Additional Saving 2014/15 : £   75,000   Full  Year  
Investment Required: Potential 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: TBC to note that where 
changes and/or savings cannot be achieved through deletion 
of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may be a need for 
compulsory redundancies arising from this proposal 
 

 
E4.2 
 

Service Description: Corporate Support Services  
 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the following 
change – To reorganise support services across Corporate Support Services.    
 

Rationale for service change proposal - To ensure that the Council continues to 
demonstrate value for money in this area.  
Consultation has taken place with all Corporate Support Services employees and trade 
unions briefed on 26th September 2012. 
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce –To be determined, 
administrative support processes will change.  Departments losing posts will see reduction 
in activity which will affect departments supported. 
 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – External N/A Partners – N/A Council – To be determined  
   

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform             Consult  (Internal)             
    
Proposed Timeline: Consultation has commenced.  Consultation will take place in 
accordance with HR procedures 
 
Implementation: April 2013  
The achievement of this proposal relates, in part, to the ongoing review of administrative 
Corporate Support Services where the review and consultation continues.  
 
Personnel to table some VR/VER in time for 2013/14 and one further HAY post VER/VR in 
2014/15. 
 
Legal to save in budget by £23,000 with Finance savings dealt elsewhere. 
 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – Officers continue to comply with HR policies and 
procedures.  This will include regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate Services. 
 

Legislation Considered – N/A 
 

Risks & Mitigating Actions – At present the risks are unknown.  However, these will be 
determined as if possible mitigated as part of the assessment of activities and consultation.  
 

x X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 55



 

 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£ 
 
  

Saving 2013/14:                     £ 248,000          Full Year 
Additional Saving 2014/15:  £114,000    Full / Part Year 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: TBC note that where 
changes and/or savings cannot be achieved through deletion 
of vacant posts, VR or VER then there may be a need for 
compulsory redundancies arising from this proposal 
 

 
E4.3 
 

Service Description:  Finance 
Review Risk Management including health and safety 
Retendering insurance premiums and claims handling and Insurance service review 
including staffing restructure for Risk & Resilience Service including Health & Safety, 
Insurance & Risk Management 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to  implementing the 
following change –  
To undertake a review of the Risk & Resilience Teams including Insurance, Health & 
Safety, Emergency Planning and Risk Management. This includes a review of the 
working practices / methodologies of the Insurance Team and review of work streams / 
levels of the Health & Safety Team to rationalise resource / capacity, this is partly due 
to the VR/VER of 2 members of staff, 1 within Insurance and 1 within Health & Safety 
but also to ensure the Teams are delivering effective and efficient services based on 
current demand. 
The review commenced mid September with a report and options to be produced 
for the end of October, Consultation will then begin on a revised structure mid 
November with implementation for January. The Health & Safety post to be deleted is 
to be with effect from 31st October 2012 and the effective date for the Insurance post is 
to be agreed.  

Rationale for service change proposal – The review of Insurance was agreed to 
following as part of the consultation process in respect of the major recent Finance & 
ICT restructure in order to ensure that the requirements of the service are taken into 
account in any downsizing, due to the request of the Health & Safety Advisor to take 
VR / VER it was decided to review all the Risk & Resilience Service to ensure all 
potential efficiencies are realised, to modernise / update the working methodologies 
and to create improved delivery of effective services. 
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – 
Some reduction in short term health and safety but replaced with more sustainable 
longer term structure; some reduction in Insurance service delivery but replaced with 
more effective sustainable structure and improved service delivery for health & safety 
and Insurance 

Impact of Service Change –  
 
Service Users – None on external service users, improved service delivery for 
internal users and more effective Risk Service including H&S and Insurance 
Partners –  None   
Council –    Improved effective service, reduction in claims and improved H&S 
   
 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type Inform         Consult (External)               Consult (Internal)         Engage  
Partnership 

X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 56



 

 

   
 

Equality Impact Assessment – The Quality Assurance group in looking at this proposal 
recognises that it is a change to working practices and is satisfied that there is no change to 
service delivery for service users. As a consequence there will be no equality implication to 
this change.   Officers continue to comply with HR policies and procedures.  This will include 
regular HR monitoring reports to Corporate Services. 
 

Legislation Considered - None 

Risks & Mitigating Actions –Short term changes to be embedded.  Risk arising for change 
in processes 
 

2012/13 Service Budget: £ 
 
Staffing:  
 
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14 (#):             £  80,000              Full / Part 
Year 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: 2(VR/VER in process )  

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 57



 

 

 
Annex D 

Council is asked to consider the proposals contained in this annex and approve Cabinet’s 
recommendations as described below  
 
 

Ref Integration  Area 
 

Recommendation to Council 

I1.1 Commissioning, Business 
Intelligence and data 

• note that changes to processes and working 
practices will seek to improve efficiency and 
effectiveness  across services 

• approve a budget reduction of £250k 

• authorise Officers to implement the actions 
required to achieve change/savings including 
the issue of relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan period, 
subject to ongoing employee/trade union 
consultation  

 

I1.2 Learning & development, 
Training, Professional Training 
and CPD 

• note that changes to processes and working 
practices will seek to improve efficiency and 
effectiveness  across services 

• approve a budget reduction of £500k 

• authorise Officers to implement the actions 
required to achieve change/savings including 
the issue of relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan period, 
subject to ongoing employee/trade union 
consultation  

 

I1.3 Financial Assessments • note that changes to processes and working 
practices will seek to improve efficiency and 
effectiveness  across services 

• approve a budget reduction of £250k 

• note that there will be no adverse impact on 
service provision 

• authorise Officers to implement the actions 
required to achieve change/savings including 
the issue of relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan period, 
subject to ongoing employee/trade union 
consultation  

 

I1.4 Customer Access Points • note that changes to processes and working 
practices will seek to improve efficiency and 
effectiveness  across services 

• approve a budget reduction of £250k 

• authorise Officers to implement the actions 
required to achieve change/savings including 
the issue of relevant statutory and contractual 
notifications within the budget plan period, 
subject to ongoing employee/trade union 
consultation  

 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 58



 

 

 
Ref Integration  Area 

 
Working 

Assumption 
£000  

I1.1 Commissioning, Business Intelligence and data 250 
I1.2 Learning & development, Training, Professional Training and 

CPD 
500 

I1.3 Financial Assessments 250 
I1.4 Customer Access Points 250 

Total  1,250 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 59



 

 

I1.1 Commissioning, Business Intelligence and data  
 

Integration Area: Business Intelligence, Performance & Policy & Commissioning 

Scope: Business Intelligence (approximately 25 posts across directorates) 
 
Commissioning (approximately 15 posts across directorates) 
 
Other areas to be determined  
 
In scope staff being established 
 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the 
following change – Heads of Service and other managers consulted.  Scoping 
meeting has taken place.  Working group has been established.  Workshop carried out.  
Proposals in development. 
 

Rationale for service change proposal – The Council delivers and commissions a 
complex range of services,   many of which are supported by various management 
structures, specialist and professional support teams.  The Council continues to 
explore opportunities to ensure the efficient and effective deployment of specialist skills 
and knowledge. 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – It is proposed that 
above functions will be reviewed and delivered in a more effective way, leading to 
efficiencies and savings. 
 

Milestone Plan  
 

Task Owner & 
Resources 

Start Date End Date 

Scoping exercise under way PM/GB Sept November 

Workshop to consider potential proposals  Oct 4th  

Outline proposals/scope considered PM/GB Oct/Nov  

Scope identified with indicative savings target PM/GB Nov  

Option identified, approved by Cabinet PM/GB Dec  

Implement Change  Jan June 13  
Impact of Service Change – Services will be based on statutory responsibilities and 
critical business need 
 
Service Users – no impact    
 
All Council Departments 
 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform             Consult (Internal)                  
  

Equality Impact Assessment – Officers will comply with HR policies and procedures. 
This will include regular HR monitoring reports to Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services. 
 

Legislation considered –  Government requirements for the provision of statutory 
service returns and the management and use of Business Intelligence and 
Performance 

x x 

Agenda Item 7

Page 60



 

 

Risks & Mitigating Actions – Timeframe extremely tight given personnel procedures.  
Full year savings will not be achievable 2013/14.  Projected implementation June 2013.  
Other proposals presented in this report may have an impact on the number of posts 
described in the scope of this proposal.  Officers will work to ensure that approved 
savings are not double counted and that employees are fully aware of all associated 
proposals. 
 

2012/13 Estimated Budget: 
To be established once 
employees in scope are 
identified 
  

Saving 2013/14:                    £        125K Full Year 
Saving 2014/15:                   £        125K Full Year       
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: TBC note that 
where changes and/or savings cannot be achieved 
through deletion of vacant posts, VR or VER then 
there may be a need for compulsory redundancies 
arising from this proposal 
     

Agenda Item 7

Page 61



 

 

I1.2  

Integration Area: Learning & Development, Training, Professional Training and CPD 

Scope:  
The integration of the “Ruthven Road” and Transformation Learning & Development 
teams and budgets.  Consideration will also be given to departmental training budgets. 
 

It is proposed to continue with consultation on and implement the following change 
–  

• Integration of teams based at Ruthven Road (former WDU) and Transformation 
Learning & Development 

• Review of training methodology that will consider the balance between in house 
delivery, greater use of blended learning approaches and commissioned activity. 

• Increase income generation opportunities. 
 

Rationale for service change proposal – The Council delivers and commissions a 
complex range of services,   many of which are supported by various management 
structures, specialist and professional support teams.  The Council continues to explore 
opportunities to ensure the efficient and effective deployment of specialist skills and 
knowledge. 
The Council will continue to –  

• ensure that essential safeguarding training needs are met 

• ensure that essential service specific training needs to meet statutory duties are 
met 

• progress the Leadership Development agenda 

• facilitate and support essential professional development  

• facilitate and support the apprenticeship scheme 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – 

• A significant reduction in the use of externally hired training venues 

• Training methodology will change in some areas and some programmes will be 
reduced with significant reduction in commissioning activity. 

• Potential for existing contracts to be re-assessed, allowed to expire or cancelled for 
some supplies and services  

Milestone Plan  
 

Task Owner & 
Resources 

Start Date End Date 

Movement of teams into CLC  Learning & 
Development 
Board 

October 
2012 

December 
2012 

Complete Training Needs Analysis,  
consider and prioritise requirements  

Learning & 
Development 
Board 

 15/12/2012 
 

Determine all Council budget and spend Learning & 
Development 
Board 

 November 
2012 

Review of training methodology that will 
consider the balance between in house 
delivery, greater use of blended learning 
approaches and commissioned activity  

Learning & 
Development 
Board 

September 
2012 

March 
2013 

Agree team structure and reporting lines Learning & 
Development 
Board 

 December 
2012 

Agenda Item 7

Page 62



 

 

Implement Change  From April 
2013 

 

 
Impact of Service Change –   
Service Users –   Some reduction of training offer (internal) 
 
Partners –  None 
 
Council – to be determined  

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform             Consult (Internal)                  
  

Equality Impact Assessment – Officers will comply with HR policies and procedures. 
This will include regular HR monitoring reports to Cabinet Member for Corporate Services. 

Legislation Considered –  

Risks & Mitigating Actions – Undergoing a Council wide TNA linked to supporting 
professional development and business outcomes. Further work will be undertaken to 
identify other learning and development budgets across the Council. Work is also being 
undertaken to explore SLAs and opportunities for income generation with other partners 
including schools. 
 

2012/13 Estimated Budget: 
£1,385,970  
Staffing:  
Other Resources used: 
buildings and supplies and 
services 

Saving 2013/14:                    £  £250,000            Full 
Year 
 
Additional Saving 2014/15: £   £250,000 Full 
Investment Required: £TBC                 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: TBC - note that 
where changes and/or savings cannot be achieved 
through deletion of vacant posts, VR or VER then there 
may be a need for compulsory redundancies arising 
from this proposal 
 

x x 

Agenda Item 7

Page 63



 

 

I1.3 

Integration Area: Financial Assessments 
 

Scope: Financial assessments are undertaken by different services across the 
Borough to support the delivery of means tested services and charging policies. The 
most significant areas are eligibility for : 
Council tax reduction 
Housing Benefit  
School transport support 
Free school meals 
Social care. 
 
These assessments are currently undertaken by teams within these specific functional 
areas as part of the service delivery. arvato undertake the assessment of Council tax 
and housing benefit claimants on behalf of the Council.  
 
 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the 
following change –  

• To aggregate the collection of personal information from residents to ensure that 
the information is collected once and used to satisfy all assessments whenever 
possible.  

• To use a common point of calculation for all residents’ financial assessments so 
that changes in data can be actioned through a single process 

• Improved data quality and management 
 
 

Rationale for service change proposal – 
This change will aim to simplify the experience of contacting different parts of the 
Council; so that people get the information and help they need first time.   
 
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – 
The rationalisation should lead to a reduced financial assessment/ administrative 
requirement for the Council  
 
 

Milestone Plan  
 

Task Owner & 
Resources 

Start Date End Date 

Identify all financial assessment 
carried out by the Council 

Transformation November 
2012 

February 
2013 

Identify the sources of personal data 
required and where possible 
alternative sources for the 
information, e.g. DWP 

Transformation 
& Business 
Intelligence  

November 
2012 

February 
2013 

Workflow the outcomes of the 
assessments, e.g. Free school 
meals eligibility used for SIMS/ 
school performance data, social 
care charging systems, 
Housing needs assessments 

Transformation 
and 
operational 
areas 

November 
2012 

February 
2013 

Agenda Item 7

Page 64



 

 

Identify common calculations for the 
assessments – common thresholds  
for full means tested support ,e.g. 
income support levels 

Transformation 
and 
operational 
areas 

November 
2012 

February 
2013 

Redesign workflows Transformation 
and 
operational 
areas 

March 2013 June 2013 

Determine new staffing structures to 
support revised work flows 

Transformation 
and 
operational 
areas 

June 2013 September 
2013   

Commence introduction of new 
practices 

Transformation 
and 
operational 
areas 

October 
2013 

 

 
Impact of Service Change –  
 
Service Users –   Improved single assessment for public, fewer requests for similar 
information, speedier processing 
 
Partners – will need to determine impact on arvato contract – assessments and one 
stop shops.  Could affect current work load of partners  
 
Council –  will require some changes in systems / workflow processes 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform             Consult (Internal)                  
  

Equality Impact Assessment – Should this option result in changes to policy being 
proposed equality implications will be assessed should Members agree the proposed 
policy change be taken forward. This will be reported when final recommendations are 
brought for a decision.  Officers will comply with HR policies and procedures. This will 
include regular HR monitoring reports to Cabinet Member for Corporate Services. 

Legislation Considered –   Changes in operational activity rather than policy 

Risks & Mitigating Actions –  
Would introduce practices that many authorities have experience of delivering and the 
project would seek out best practice in other Councils 

2012/13 Estimated Budget: 
£TBC 
 
Staffing:    TBC 
 
 

Saving 2014/15: £        250,000 
Investment Required: £        10,000     2012/13: 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk:  3 or 4 - note that 
where changes and/or savings cannot be achieved 
through deletion of vacant posts, VR or VER then there 
may be a need for compulsory redundancies arising 
from this proposal 
 

x x 

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



 

 

I1.4 

Integration Area: Customer Access Points  
 

Scope: The public has a range of access points with the Council. These range from 
one stop shops in Southport and Bootle, reception desks in council buildings, service 
specific offices, (e.g. parking , planning), service access points e.g. children’s centres,  
telephone and internet communication.  
 
 

It is proposed to continue with consultation with a view to implementing the 
following change –  
To reduce the physical access points requiring staffing support and to expand the 
range of services that can be delivered through the Council’s website and other more 
cost effective delivery channels.  
 

Rationale for service change proposal – 
The Council is a very large organisation providing a wide range of services. This 
change will aim to simplify the experience of contacting different parts of the Council; 
so that people get the information and help they need first time.   
As part of this change we will seek to provide the public with on-line real time service 
access wherever possible, e.g. submission of applications, reduce the cost of providing 
multiple access points where these are not fully utilised or have limited opening / 
operating hours.  
 
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – 

The Council has commenced a programme of work to develop the Council website to 
be more accessible and enable customers to make more transactions online. 

This will continue and seek to increase the range of services people can access 
through our website and transactions they can make, since this is now widely expected 
by the public, often more convenient than the telephone or face-to-face and costs less 
for us to provide. 

Reception points, face to face access points, manned general information points, 
Increased on line applications, referrals, account maintenance,  advice , FAQs 
 
 

Milestone Plan  
 

Task Owner & 
Resources 

Start Date End Date 

Map all access points Transformation November 
2012 

January 
2013 

Identify common customer activities or 
coinciding customer actions, e.g. actions 
on change of financial circumstances, 
births deaths , marriages, payment of 
accounts, submission of applications 

Transformation November 
2012 

February 
2013 

Investigate good practice in Councils  for 
streamlined customer access 

Transformation November 
2012 

February 
2013 

Identify three phases of change initiatives 
– quick wins, medium term reallocation of 

Transformation February 
2013 

April 
2013 

Agenda Item 7

Page 66



 

 

contact points, long term linkages to other 
integration projects including social care 
referral systems 

Implement Change  From April 
2013 

 

 
Impact of Service Change –  
 
Service Users –   May reduce physical access points or redirect public to new points 
e.g. children centres, may reduce need to visits to different Council offices for different 
queries.  
 
Partners – Officers will explore opportunities to co-locate services with partner 
organisations. 
 
Council –  will require improved workflow/ communications systems to keep a range of 
services notified of changes 

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform             Consult (Internal)                Partnership  
  

Equality Impact Assessment – As processes change full consideration will be given 
the impact of any changes and Members will be made aware of identified issues, risks 
and mitigating actions.  This change seeks to improve customer access processes and 
disability access would be prioritised within the financial constraints of the Council. 
 
Officers will comply with HR policies and procedures. This will include regular HR 
monitoring reports to Cabinet Member for Corporate Services. 

Legislation Considered –  

Risks & Mitigating Actions – It is understood that not everyone can, or chooses, to 
use the website; that it does not suit all our residents. The Council will continue to 
provide and improve the different ways people can access services, making sure 
people can do business with us swiftly and hassle-free depending on their need.  

 
 

  2014/15: £ 250,000   Full / Part Year 
Investment Required: £TBC              Year: 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: TBC - note that 
where changes and/or savings cannot be achieved 
through deletion of vacant posts, VR or VER then there 
may be a need for compulsory redundancies arising 
from this proposal 
 

x x x 

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



 

 

 
Annex E 

Council is asked to consider the proposals contained in this annex and approve Cabinet’s 
recommendations as described below  

 
 

Ref Service Area Change  Recommendation to Council 

F1.2 Grounds 
Maintenance  

Recharging grounds 
maintenance/utility costs 
for adult football/sports 
users/bowlers 

• to consider, note and agree the 
contents of the Equality Analysis 
report  

• approve that all users of paid-for 
facilities (except juniors 
additional option still subject to 
consultation) fund the full actual 
costs of grounds maintenance 
and utilities associated with their 
use of the facilities  

• note that formal facilities would 
be withdrawn if costs are not 
met 

• approve a budget reduction of 
£85k 
 

F1.4 Cemeteries 
and 
Crematoria 

Increase burial and 
cremation charges 

• to consider, note and agree the 
contents of the Equality Analysis 
report  

• approve the  increase the 
charge for burials, cremations 
and associated services as 
described 

• approve an increased income 
target  £400k 
 

F2.1 Cleansing Restructure Crews and 
introduce charge for bulky 
items 

• to consider, note and agree the 
contents of the Equality Analysis 
report  

• approve the  introduction of 
charges for collection of bulky 
items as described 

• approve the reconfiguration of 
teams  

• authorise Officers to implement 
the actions required to achieve 
change/savings including the 
issue of relevant statutory and 
contractual notifications within 
the budget plan period, subject 
to ongoing employee/trade 
union consultation  

• approve an new income target  
and budget reduction of £210k 
(net) 
 

F4.1 Commissioning Area based committees  • approve the reduction of budget 
to Area Committees by £100k 

• note that the remaining budget 
must be used to discharge the 

Agenda Item 7

Page 68



 

 

two statutory functions currently 
carried out by the Area 
Committees (replacement street 
signs and bins) 

• note that there will be less 
budget available for Members at 
an area level to make small one 
off improvements to the locality  

 
 
 
 
 

Ref Service Area Change option Proposed 
Change £000  

F1.2 Grounds 
Maintenance  

Recharging grounds maintenance/utility costs 
for adult football/sports users/bowlers 

85 

F1.4 Cemeteries 
and 
Crematoria 

Increase burial and cremation charges 
400 

  Sub Total 485 

Place 
 

Ref Service Area Change option Proposed 
Change £000 

F2.1 Cleansing Restructure Crews and introduce charge for 
bulky items 

210 

Sub Total 210 

 
Commissioning 
 

Ref Service Area Change Option Proposed 
Change £000  

F4.1 Commissioning Area based committees  100 

Sub Total 100 

Total 795 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 69



 

 

F1.2     

Service Description: Parks and Greenspaces Service: Sports users fees and charges 
 
As part of its wider integrated responsibilities, the Parks and Greenspaces Service manages 
several ‘paid-for’ facilities which are managed for the individual use of certain users or 
groups of users. This is effectively providing facilities for people’s exclusive use, unlike the 
wider park facilities, which are open to everyone. 
 
The ‘paid-for’ facilities include: 

• Formal football pitches (adult and Junior) 

• Cricket wickets 

• Formal Rugby pitches (adult and Junior) 

• Bowling greens 

• Croquet lawns 

The income in 11/12 to the Council from fees and charges for these services was £64K (for 
all sport, including juniors). As part of the 12/13 savings this was to be increased by 65k in 
12/13 and a further 20k in 13/14 (for adult sport and allotments only).   
The current costs incurred for providing these facilities are circa £290K (for all sport, 
including juniors). 

It is proposed to implement the following change – All users of paid-for facilities (except 
juniors: detailed elsewhere) to fund the full actual costs of grounds maintenance and utilities 
associated with their use of the facilities (in place of existing fees and charges and utility 
costs). Formal facilities would be withdrawn if costs are not met. 

Rationale for service change proposal – 
To achieve a highly significant level of savings overall, and try to minimise the effect on the 
wider Sefton community as much as possible.  
 
Those who have more ‘exclusive’ use of facilities (as opposed to general park users), will 
therefore pay a more economic cost towards the running of these facilities themselves. 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – 
Maintenance of adult sports pitches will cease, unless the users / user groups fund the full 
costs of grounds maintenance (and utilities) associated with their use of the facilities. 
 
Costs will be calculated from the costed bill of quantities in the Grounds Maintenance 
contract and from the actual bills from utility companies. 
 
Any pitches / greens which are taken out of use will be returned to general park use and 
maintained to the appropriate grass standard. 
 
The table below summarises the anticipated average cost to the users (in place of existing 
fees and charges and utilities costs 12/13). 
 

 No of 
(adult) 
facilities 
 
(n.b. this 
varies 
each 
season) 

Approx. 
number of  
(adult) users 
(2012/13) 
 
(n.b. this 
varies each 
season) 

Current actual costs for providing facility (adults only) 
 
(This is a guide only based on averages, each user 
group will be consulted about their specific charges, 
which vary depending on facilities used at each site) 
 
 

   See note 1 

Baseball 1 20 Total: £2k 
Grounds maintenance: £2,000 per diamond 

Bowling greens: 17 1,000 Total: £82k (across the borough) 
Grounds maintenance: £4,200 average per green  

Agenda Item 7

Page 70



 

 

Utilities: average £600 per pavilion (where applicable) 

Cricket wickets 
 

1 40 Total: £1,800 (across the borough)  
Grounds maintenance: £1,800 
Pavilion cleansing: (not applicable – provided by 
others) 
Utilities: (not applicable – provided by others) 

Croquet lawns: 2 (9 
courts) 

100 n/a 
the club now maintain their own facilities 

Football pitches  50 2,500 Total: £95k (across the borough) 
Grounds maintenance: £1,650 per pitch 
Pavilion cleansing: £1,550 per pavilion (where 
applicable) 
Utilities: average £1,250 per pavilion (where 
applicable) 

Rugby pitches  2 35 Total: £2,000 at these facilities 
Grounds maintenance: £1,000 per pitch 
Pavilion cleansing: (not applicable – provided by 
others) 
Utilities: (not applicable – provided by others) 

 
Note 1. 
In most instances, individual users, teams and pitch lettings are not managed by the 
council, but via management agreements with sports leagues/ associations. Therefore it is 
difficult to predict accurately what the cost implications will be to the individual or team. 
However, as a guide only, based on averages and with caveats stated: 
Baseball: 
This increase would result in a charge per player of £100 per year (about £2 per week for a 
26 week playing season) 
Bowling: 
For a bowler who plays in a club with 50 players, this would increase the charge to £96 per 
year (under £3 per week) for a 34 week playing season 
Cricket: 
this increase would result in a charge per player of £45 per year (under £2 per week over a 
24 week playing season) 
Football: 
assuming a team use a pitch which is used about half of the time (i.e. 4 out of 8 sessions 
each weekend); who share use of the pavilion, and book one half pitch, this would mean a 
charge of £1,100 per team per year (about £30 per week spread across a 38 week season 
availability, and therefore about £2 per week per player for a team with 15 players). 
Rugby: 
This increase would result in a charge of about £55 per player per year, about £1.50 per 
week based on a 38 week playing season 
 
Note 2. 
The fees/charges levied on individual users by sports leagues/ associations may be higher 
than this to cover their other costs and aspirations.  
 
Note 3. 
It is likely that an open book approach will need to be adopted in the future where actual 
costs are passed on, with the addition of an agreed management fee for the league/ 
association 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – Previously use of facilities was heavily subsidised by the Council and 
users generally paid only a small proportion of the actual costs associated with their activity. 
The 12/13 savings round has already increased their costs significantly. Therefore the 
proposed further increases in income will mean that users are paying significantly more for 
their sports / hobbies than they are currently. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 71



 

 

To date at least two bowling clubs and eight football teams have folded stating increased 
charges as a reason. This further increase may cause a greater number of people to stop 
using the services. 
Partners – Income from facilities is in many cases obtained via management agreements 
with Leagues, Bowling Clubs etc. These partners would need to be involved in the 
agreements and management of the increased charges.  
 
NB It may be that the leagues/ associations in question will wish to raise fees and charges 
to users above and beyond those described above in order to continue generating their own 
income 
Council – New agreements are already being drawn up with users/ user groups to ensure 
that the payment of the 12/13 increased charges are formally agreed. Should this further 
increase be agreed, a further amendment of legal agreements would be required.   

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type Inform             Consult            Engage            Partnership   
 
There is no requirement for consultation on this option as the 2012/13 budget options 
consultation has taken place. 
 
Proposed timeline: enact by April 13 
 

• A new group called Sefton Sports Connect has been developed led by Parks and 
Greenspace Service with partners from Sefton Sports Council, Council for Voluntary 
Services (CVS), and other council depts (Sports Development, Energy team, and 
Education). This group has met six times to date in 2012 on: 23rd Feb, 22nd mar, 8th 
May, 27th June, 14th Aug, and 14th Sept. 

 

• The above efforts have developed a package of options open to sports clubs and 
league in order to cope with the fee increases.  

 

• Two workshop sessions have been arranged to pass this information onto groups, 
(4th and 26th Sept 2012). The first of which was well attended (circa 65) and feedback 
was positive of the various ways forward. 

 

• In addition, there have been meetings and many ongoing discussions with many 
sports clubs and leagues regarding options open to them, and exploring these further 

 

• All sports users groups will be informed of their proposed fee increase for 13/14 as 
an outline in October 2012, followed by more detailed information is it becomes 
available (as utilities costs are clarified based on actual bills for 12/13) 

 

• Staff meetings take place every other week to provide updates including those 
relating to savings. In particular two away half day sessions have taken place for 
people to be kept up to date and to input on savings proposals: 31st July and 11th 
Sept 2012.  

 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – See assessment below 

Legislation Considered – N/A  

Risks & Mitigating Actions –  
Risk: Users may refuse to pay for grounds maintenance charges 
Mitigating Action: Formal agreements to be put in place 

x 

Agenda Item 7

Page 72



 

 

 
Risk: Significant number of users may stop using the facilities 
Mitigating Action: Sports facilities to be rationalised accordingly. Working group already set 
up with the Sports Council, CVS and other departments to help clubs mitigate impacts/ seek 
alternatives 
 
Risk: The managing agents who currently administer activities may fold 
Mitigation: a further charge may need to be levied to fund additional officer time to 
administer the remaining sports. 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£290k 
Staffing: n/a 
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14:                     £  85,000       Full Year 
 
 
 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk: 0 

 
  

  Equality Analysis Report  Reference:F1.2 Sports Ground Maintenance 
(Adults)  

 
Details of proposal:  
 
As part of its wider integrated responsibilities, the Parks and Greenspaces Service manages 
several ‘paid-for’ facilities which are managed for the individual use of certain users or 
groups of users. This is effectively providing facilities for people’s exclusive use, unlike the 
wider park facilities, which are open to everyone. 
The ‘paid-for’ facilities include: 

• Formal football pitches (adult and Junior) 

• Cricket wickets 

• Formal Rugby pitches (adult and Junior) 

• Bowling greens 

• Croquet lawns 

The income in 11/12 to the Council from fees and charges for these services was £64K (for 
all sport, including juniors). As part of the 12/13 savings this was to be increased by 65k in 
12/13 and a further 20k in 13/14 (for adult sport and allotments only).   
The current costs incurred for providing these facilities are circa £290K (for all sport, 
including juniors). 

All users of paid-for facilities to fund the full actual costs of grounds maintenance and utilities 
associated with their use of the facilities (in place of existing fees and charges and utility 
costs).  
Formal facilities would be withdrawn if costs are not met. 
 

Ramifications of Proposal:  
 Is there a consequence to ‘Threshold’: Yes 
Is there a consequence to ‘Capacity’: No 
 
The cost of ground maintenance and utilities will be passed on to facility users thus 

Agenda Item 7

Page 73



 

 

increasing the cost of using these facilities.  
 
Equality Analysis report was submitted to cabinet in February 2012 in relation to previous 
cost increases on sport facilities. This analysis report draws on that and comments on the 
above proposal.  
 
The previous Equality Analysis report identified community concerns but correctly assessed 
there to be no discrimination at play.  
 
The Council notes that the increase in charges may mean people giving up their sports 
activities on purely financial grounds, and regrets that it cannot continue to subsidise the 
cost when there are other urgent budget requirements. 
 

Are there any protected characteristics that will be disproportionally affected in 
comparison to others?  
 
Previous Equality Analysis recognised trends in service use such as Older People using 
bowling gardens, Croquet lawns and young adults playing football and rugby etc.  
 
The cost increase goes across all sports facilities, whilst it is unfortunate that groups are 
facing higher fees to keep using the facilities, it’s not discriminatory to increase the fees. 
 

Consultation 
Extensive consultation took place during the period October 2011- January 2012 on the 

changes to charges and was reported to Cabinet and Council in February 2012 and 
this proposal draws on previous findings and links to that consultation.  

 

Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will continue to be met? 
Yes – this service will be delivered in line with the Equality Act 2010 by ensuring facilities 

are usable and accessible. 
 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by Cabinet & Council? 

• Notify users of increased charges 
 Monitor any reduction or difficult with service use. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 74



 

 

F1.4 
 

Service Description: Increase charges for burial and cremation service 
Regulatory   -£1.367m 
Frontline (contracted)  £0.427 

-£0.94m 
 
The section manages the burial and cremation service in Sefton, which is delivered at four 
cemeteries and two crematoria. 
 

It is proposed to implement the following change –  
 
q To increase the charge for burials, cremations and associated services to a level that 

is likely to be the most expensive charged locally, regionally and nationally.  The 
increase in charges would be above the rate of inflation and generate an additional 
income in the region of £400,000. 

 
q The current charges for the main services are: 
  

o Cremation    £600 
o Interment (1/ 2 coffins deep) £600 
o Interment (3/4 coffins deep)  £675 and £715 (respectively) 
o Purchase of a grave (resident) £750 

 
q Currently Sefton’s prices are in the upper quartile of those charged locally but are not 

the most expensive on Merseyside. 
 
Current fees charged locally by similar burial and cremation authorities: 

 Sefton 2012/3 Liverpool 
2012/3 

Wirral 2012/3 St. Helens 
2012/3 

Cremation £600 £674 £575 £479 

Interment (1/2) £600 £662 £575 £583 

Interment (3/4) £675 & £715 £662 £575 £583 

Grave 
purchase 

£750 £811 £865 £751 

(The table includes some calculated or averaged charges) 

 
q A significant increase, especially if neighbouring authorities do not increase their 

charges above inflation, will make Sefton’s charges the most expensive locally.  This 
could lead to a loss of business to these other providers. 

 
q Charges could be raised by approximately 17 to 25%, with smaller increases for the 

interments of 3 and 4 coffins deep, to give new charges of: 
 

o Cremation    £750 
o Interment (all depths)  £750 
o Purchase of a grave (resident) £900 

 
q If this increase was applied and our comparison group only increased their charges 

by inflation (estimated at 3%) then we would be the most expensive provider locally. 
 
  
Estimated fees 2013/4 charged locally by similar burial and cremation authorities: 

Agenda Item 7

Page 75



 

 

 Sefton 2013/4 Liverpool 
2013/4 

Wirral 2013/4 St. Helens 
2013/4 

Cremation £750 £694  £592 £493  

Interment (all) £750 £682  £592  £600  

Grave 
purchase 

£900 £835  £891  £773  

 
q Cremations account for 75% of the request for service.  Cremation charges are 

bench-marked nationally.  If a 17-25% increase was applied and other providers only 
applied an increase by inflation then: 

 
q Sefton would be in the most expensive charge locally, regionally and nationally. 
 
q If this increase of 17-25% is applied to all charges, which includes other services and 

products that represent about 5% of total income, (subject to rounding to the nearest 
appropriate figure) an increased income in the region of £400,000 would be 
generated. 

 

Rationale for service change proposal – There is an opportunity to raise prices to a level 
which may equal the maximum charged in England. 
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – Burial, cremation and 
related service charges will increase. 
 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – will have to pay more.  However the charges levied by Sefton form only 
part of the overall cost of an average funeral.  The average cost of a basic cremation funeral 
package is £2,990 [source co-operative funeral care ‘amber’ package] and a national 
insurance company [source Sun Alliance] indicated that the average spend for a funeral in 
2011 (including cars, flowers, wake, memorial etc.) was £6,801. 
Partners – will have little impact from the increases, as these will be passed on to their 
client as disbursements. 
Council – may receive poor press for raising the charges above the rate of inflation 
   

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type Inform             Consult            Engage            Partnership   
 
Proposed Timeline: April 2013 
 
The staff have been made aware and kept informed of the proposals to raise the charges. 
If the charges are approved , information relating to the new  charges  will be disseminated 
via:- 

• The Funeral Directors Forum meeting in November. 

• written notices to individual funeral directors, the Southport Hebrew Congregation 
and to local members of the Dying Matters’ Group in December 

• notices displayed at all cemetery/crematorium entrances, cremation service offices, 
crematoria waiting rooms, and the offices of the Registrars for births deaths and 
marriages in December 

• the fees and charges list which accompanies application forms will be amended in 
March 2013 
 

Consultation and engagement took place during October 2011-January 2012 on the 

X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 76



 

 

changes to charges which were reported to Cabinet and Council in February 2012 and 
this proposals links and draws on that consultation.  

 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the Council is 
required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – See assessment below 

Legislation Considered - N/A 
 

Risks & Mitigating Actions –There will be a significant risk that some customers may use 
services offered by neighbouring authorities. 
This has been allowed for in the income estimate. 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
-£0.94m 
Staffing: 15 
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14 (#):            £400,000    Full Year 
Investment Required: £0               
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk:  none 

 
 
 

Equality Analysis Report  
 Reference: F1.4 Cremations and Burials 

 
Details of proposal:  
 
To increase the charge for burials, cremations and associated services.  The increase in 
charges would be above the rate of inflation and generate an additional income in the region 
of £400,000. 
 
The current charges for the main services are: 

o Cremation -  £600 
o Interment (1/ 2 coffins deep) - £600 
o Interment (3/4 coffins deep) - £675 and £715 (respectively) 
o Purchase of a grave (resident) - £750 

Currently Sefton’s prices are in the upper quartile of those charged locally but are not the 
most expensive on Merseyside. 
 
The proposed increase could lead to charges which would equal the current most expensive 
on Merseyside.   
 
An Equality Analysis report was submitted to Cabinet in February 2012 in relation to 
previous cost increases for burial, cremations and associated services. This analysis report 
draws on previous findings and is commenting on the above proposal. 
 
 

Ramifications of Proposal:  
  
Is there a consequence to ‘Threshold’: Yes 
Is there a consequence to ‘Capacity’: No 
 
The threshold will change as costs to all residents will increase if the proposal to increase 
the charges to clients of the Cemeteries and Crematoria service is accepted. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 77



 

 

 
Are there any protected characteristics that will be disproportionally affected in 
comparison to others?  
 
Previous consultation reported: 
 
Sefton Pensioners and Older Citizens raised the following: 
Whilst we understand that some charges may need to be increased, we would ask for some 
protection for those on low incomes (such as pensioners) and for the environmental impacts 
to be taken into account (e.g. the balance between cremation and burial charges should 
reflect sustainability considerations).   
Faith 
Although the increase in charges for burials and cremations is universal for all service users, 
some faith groups may be disadvantaged.   This is because some congregations have 
special savings schemes for their future burial or cremation, which would be affected by the 
increased charges.   
Mitigation: 
For people who find the fees difficult to pay, funds are currently available from the 
Government’s Social Fund.  This covers funeral expenses.   

 
Consultation  
Consultation and engagement took place during October 2011-January 2012 on the 

changes to charges which were reported to Cabinet and Council in February 2012 and 
this proposals links and draws on that consultation.  

 

Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will continue to be met? 
 
Yes: The service will continue to be delivered in line with the Equality Act.  
 
Mitigation action is in place connected to those who are too poor to pay. 
 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by Cabinet & Council? 
 

1. Notify communities & funeral providers of new pricing policy.  
2. Monitor progress 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 78



 

 

Direct Services 
F2.1 
 
 

Service Description:  Bulky Items Collection Service 
The Bulky Item Collection Service generated 47,000 calls in 2010/11.  This figure has 
dropped to 39,000 in 2011/12.  This mirrors a similar national trend and it is perceived that 
due to the economic downturn there are less ‘major purchases’, such as settees, beds, 
tables, white goods, etc, and therefore a reducing demand for disposal.  
 
Presently there is no charge for the service.  There are currently 4 crews and vehicles which 
service this demand. 
 

It is proposed to implement the following change –  
 
It is proposed to reduce the number of crews by 2.  This is to be combined with a 
reorganisation of collection schedules and route optimisation which will allow the remaining 
two crews to complete all of the required collections.  This will provide a saving of £110,000.  
The vehicles currently utilised in the service are subject to lease conditions until 2016 and 
therefore, at this stage, this part of the saving proposal is based on staff savings. 
 
In addition, further savings have been identified through potentially charging for the 
remaining service. 
 

If a charge of £5 per collection (of up to 3 items) is levied and we received 20,000 calls (as 
opposed to the 39,000 calls received last year) an additional £100,000 would be raised as 
income.  
 
This would result in a potential overall saving of £210,000. 
 

The internal consultation process has established arrangements for releasing staff that have 
expressed an interest in VR/VER and re-allocating others to accommodate this proposal, if 
approved. 
 

Rationale for service change proposal –  
Under these proposals the service would operate on an income generating basis, with the 
potential for the income raised via charging for collections covering the cost of the remaining 
crews.  If demand increased at a higher than expected level, additional vehicles and crews 
could be provided on a ‘business needs’ basis. 
 
If the cost per collection were kept at the lower end initially (say £5) it is expected that the 
demand would be higher than if a higher charge were levied.  This may allow the service to 
become self financing. 
 
There may also be an opportunity to expand the service to include items not currently 
collected, subject to further negotiation with MWDA. 
 
Under the Environmental Protection Act (1990), the Council has a duty to collect such waste 
or ‘bulky items’ from residents if requested.  However, the Council is at liberty to make a 
charge for such collections if it feels it is appropriate to do so. 
 
Knowsley have introduced a charge of £20 per collection, but will collect five items, 

Agenda Item 7

Page 79



 

 

including bathroom fittings.  The number of calls has fallen from 15,000 to 3,000. 
 
Wirral currently charge £38 per collection, and the scheme is operated by their private 
contractor BIFFA.  Further information is not currently available. 
 
Liverpool currently offer a free service but is considering introducing a charge. 
 
St Helens currently offer a free service but are also considering introducing a charge. They 
currently receive 25,000 calls per year. 
 
There are no concessions offered by any authority which currently charges a fee to collect 
‘bulky items’. 
  

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce –  
At present residents can have ‘bulky items’ removed free of charge.  The proposal would 
see a charge levied for a collection.  Based on an expected demand of 20,000 calls the 
waiting period for collection may also increase slightly up to two weeks. 
  

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users - The removal of bulky items will be subject to a charge for a service which 
was previously free. 
Partners - The subject of ‘Bulky Refuse Collection Services is currently being considered as 
a potential ‘shared service’ across a number of Merseyside Authorities in conjunction with 
the MWDA. 
Council – There may be an increase in the level of fly tipping which may increase costs in 
other areas of the Cleansing Service.  However, there is no evidence of any major increase 
in fly tipping as a result of the implementation of a charge in any other Borough. 
   

Communications, Consultations & Engagement – 
Type Inform             Consult (internal)            Engage            Partnership   
 
Proposed Timeline: Implement in April 2013. 
Internal consultation will take place in accordance with HR procedures 
 

This proposal has been discussed with the Trade Unions at a Cleansing JCC meeting and 
also staff currently deployed to Bulky Item collection duties. Arrangements are in place, 
subject to approval of this proposal, to transfer these staff to other duties and to release 
other staff who have expressed an interest in VR/VER as necessary to facilitate this 
process.  
Whilst the Council has a duty to collect “bulky items” it also has the authority to charge for 
such a service. The Council will inform the public in good time that a charge will be 
introduced from April 2013.  
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the 
Council are required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – See assessment below 
Officers will comply with HR policies and procedures.  This will include regular HR 
monitoring reports to Corporate Services.  

Legislation Considered The requirements of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 have 
been considered in the development of this proposal.  Under the Environmental Protection 
Act (1990), the Council has a duty to collect such waste or ‘bulky items’ from residents if 
requested.  However, the Council is at liberty to make a reasonable charge for such 
collections if it feels it is appropriate to do so. 
 

x X 

Agenda Item 7

Page 80



 

 

Risks & Mitigating Actions–  
The main risk is that by charging for the collection service the amount of fly tipping may 
increase.  The higher the charge the more risk of an increase. 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£253,000 
Staffing: 8 
Other Resources used:  

Saving 2013/14 (#):     £210,000 (Staffing & Charging 
Proposal)                
Investment Required: None 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk:  None, postholders 
can be accommodated elsewhere. 

 

Equality Analysis Report  
Reference: F2.1  bulky item charge 

 
Details of proposal:  
The Bulky Item Collection Service generated 47,000 calls in 2010/11.  This figure has 
dropped to 39,000 in 2011/12.  This mirrors a similar national trend and it is perceived that 
due to the economic downturn there are less ‘major purchases’, such as settees, beds, 
tables, white goods, etc, and therefore a reducing demand for disposal.  
Presently there is no charge for the service.  There are currently 4 crews and vehicles 
which service this demand. 
It is proposed to reduce the number of crews by 2.  This is to be combined with a 
reorganisation of collection schedules and route optimisation which will allow the remaining 
two crews to complete all of the required collections.  This will provide a saving of 
£110,000.  The vehicles currently utilised in the service are subject to lease conditions until 
2016 and therefore, at this stage, this part of the saving proposal is based on staff savings. 
In addition, further savings have been identified through potentially charging for the 
remaining service. 
If a charge of £5 per collection is levied and the Council received 20,000 calls (as opposed 
to the 39,000 calls received last year) an additional £100,000 would be raised as income.  
This would result in a potential overall saving of £210,000. 

Ramifications of Proposal:  
 
NB - The Council has a duty to collect “bulky items” however it has the authority to charge 
for such a service. 
Is there a consequence to ‘Threshold’: Yes 
Is there a consequence to ‘Capacity’: Yes 
 
The free collection service will be decommissioned and all collections will be charged.  
In order to reduce costs the collection teams will be reduced from 4 teams to 2 thus 
creating potential delay in the service.  
 
There could be a situation where by the delay in collection could cause difficultly to 
disabled people if an item is left such that it blocks a disabled access site to a home or 
facility (shop/services).  
In this situation it would be unacceptable to allow the barring of access.  
In order to mitigate this, any notification that an item is blocking a disability access, then 
the item(s) would be prioritised for collection and removal. 

 
Are there any protected characteristics that will be disproportionally affected in 
comparison to others?  
 
The charging for removal of bulky items is linked to people’s financial position and not their 

Agenda Item 7

Page 81



 

 

protected characteristic status. However, as stated above due to the charging policy there 
may be more fly-tipping which could block bona-fide disability access. If this was to happen 
council would have to prioritise the removal of the item.  

 
Consultation 
 
The Council has a duty to collect “bulky items” however it has the authority to charge for 

such a service. The Council needs to inform the public in good time that a charge will 
be introduced from April 2013. 

 

Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will continue to be met? 
 
Yes - The Council notes that the introduction of charging may mean people not using the 
service on purely financial grounds, and regrets that it cannot continue to subsidise the 
cost when there are other urgent budget requirements.  
 
In relation to disability access being blocked due to fly-tipping the council will endeavour to 
remove this.  
 
The service will be delivered in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.  
 
Where this proposal affects staff they will be subject to established HR procedures. 
 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by Cabinet & Council? 
 
Inform service users and staff connected with this proposal.  

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 82



 

 

Corporate Commissioning 
F4.1 
 

Service Description: Area Committee Budgets  
The budget for all Area Committees is £200,150 per year.  There are two statutory functions 
that the Area Committee budget must fulfil: the replacement of street signs and funding of 
street bins.   
 
The budget is used by Members at an area level to make improvements to local areas that 
they feel will make a difference. General guidance is that it can’t be spent on things that 
require ongoing maintenance unless this is agreed; revenue items such as staffing are also 
not eligible. 
 

It is proposed to implement the following change –  
It is proposed to reduce the Area Committee budget to £100,000. 
 

Rationale for service change proposal – 
In the past some Area Committees have not spent their full annual allocation and so have 
some reserves (from carry over from previous years).     
 

The following activity will change, stop or significantly reduce – 
Each Area Committee spends its budget in different ways and responds to the needs of its 
residents.  Typically, funds have been used to pay for Traffic Regulation Orders, alleygates, 
one off community events, environmental improvements and local safety measures, plus 
street signs and bins.   
 

Impact of Service Change –  
Service Users – would limit what could be resourced to respond to needs of residents to 
replacement of street signs and street bins. Criteria would need to be revised to limit what 
resources could be spent on.  Should Area Committee budgets be reduced Members of 
Area Committees will inform local people of the criteria for applying for the reduced level of 
funding 
Partners – there would be no additional resources to support partners to deliver specific 
initiatives in local areas. 
Council – there would need to be some consultation in order to revise funding criteria to 
ensure maximum use of resources; reduction in additional services being bought from 
existing Council departments.  The Area Committee funding would no longer be available to 
fund additional services through the Council and therefore there may be increased 
expectation of existing services as no enhancements could be funded. 
   

Communications, Consultations & Engagement –  
 
Type Inform             Consult  (External)            Consult (Internal)            Engage 
 
  Partnership     
 
Proposed Timeline: Engagement by 6 November 2012 
Implementation: 1st April 2013 
Standard Council procedures will be observed in the instances where the 
Council are required to inform the public 

Equality Impact Assessment – The Quality Assurance group in looking at this option 
recognises that it is a technical change. Statutory services will remain in place with regard to 
replacing street signs street bins. Revised processes concerning the other activities will be 

X  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 83



 

 

subject to concurring equality analysis.  As a consequence there will be no equality 
implication to this change. 
 

Legislation Considered - There is no specific legislation in relation to this however the 
Council must be mindful of the statutory obligations with regards the placement of bins and 
maintenance of street signs. 
 

Risks & Mitigating Actions – Currently Area Committee budgets have been used to 
respond to specific local issues and reduction in resources will limit our ability to do this. 
Revision to criteria and consultation on local priorities may mitigate some of this as 
potentially will rule out some actions. Also continued negotiations with services and partners 
by the Corporate Commissioning Department will assist in responding to local issues. 
 

2012/13 Service Budget: 
£200,150 
 
Staffing: N/A 
 
 

Saving 2013/14 (#):                    £100,000           Full Year 
 
Indicative Number of Staff at Risk:  0 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 84



 

 

Report to: Cabinet Member -                           Date of Decision      5 September 2012 
  Communities & Environment            
  Cabinet     Date of Meeting    11 October 2012 
            Council                                                                     22 November 2012
     
Subject: Capital Programme - Contaminated Land Capital Project Grant 
 
Report of: Director of Built Environment         Wards Affected: Derby 
 
Is this a Key Decision?   No                 Is it included in the Forward Plan? No 
 
Exempt/Confidential No  
 

 
Purpose 
To accept the allocation of DEFRA grant funding of £30,803 to undertake further 
investigation into potentially contaminated land and to include the fund in the 2012/13 
capital programme. 
 
 
Recommendation(s) 
That Cabinet accepts the DEFRA Contaminated land investigation grant of £30,803 and 
recommends that Council agree to include the grant in the Council’s 2012/13 capital 
programme. 
 
That Council agrees to include the DEFRA contaminated land investigation grant for 
£30,803 in the Council’s Capital Programme 2012/13. 
 
 
How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives? 
 

 Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community  ü 

 
 

2 Jobs and Prosperity  ü 

 
 

3 Environmental Sustainability ü 

 
  

4 Health and Well-Being ü 

 
  

5 Children and Young People  ü 

 
 

6 Creating Safe Communities ü 

 
  

7 Creating Inclusive Communities  ü 

 
 

8 Improving the Quality of Council Services 
and Strengthening Local Democracy 

 ü 

 
 

 
 
Reasons for the Recommendation: Acceptance of the grant funding and undertaking 
the investigation will assist the Council in discharging its statutory duty in relation to 
managing contaminated land in an appropriate manner. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 85



 

What will it cost and how will it be financed? 
 
(A) Revenue Costs 
 
(B) Capital Costs : The capital cost will be £30,803 which will be financed completely 
by grant funding from Defra. 
 
Implications: 
 
The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below: 
 

Legal The Council's statutory duty to inspect its area under Part  2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990  is referred to in the body of the report 
 

Human Resources 
 

Equality 
1. No Equality Implication      

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated 

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains  

 

 
Impact on Service Delivery: 
Assistance in discharge of the Council’s contaminated land statutory duty that otherwise 
would fall to the Council to fund. 
 
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 
The Head of Corporate Finance (FD 1740) and Head of Corporate Legal Services (LD 
1065) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated into the report. 
 
Are there any other options available for consideration? 
Not to accept the time related grant and to fund further investigation from core resources. 
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 
Following the decision of Council. 
 
Contact Officer: Iain Robbins (Contaminated Land Team Leader) 
Tel: 0151 934 4030 
Email: iain.robbins@sefton.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: 
The following papers are available for inspection by contacting the above officer. 
 

1. Sefton Council’s Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy (Revised August 2010) 
2. Scope of Works for the site investigation of Vaux Crescent, Bootle 

 
 
 
 

ü 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 86



 

1. Background 
 
1.1 Under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, each local authority has 

a statutory duty to inspect their areas to identify land that meets the statutory 
definition of contaminated land and ensure that it is managed in an appropriate 
manner.  

 
1.2 Sefton Council’s Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy (Revised August 2010) 

sets out how the council proposes to implement its inspection duties under Part 
2A and adopt a strategic risk based approach to identify land which presents 
unacceptable risks to human health or the wider environment. 

 
1.3 The Environment Agency (EA) manage the Contaminated Land Capital Projects 

Programme to help local authorities to cover the capital cost of implementing the 
contaminated land regime under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990. The programme is funded by the Department for Environment, Food and 
Rural Affairs (DEFRA). 

 
1.4 The programme funds two types of work: 
 

• Intrusive site investigations, which aim to find out whether a site is 
contaminated and if so, to inform how it should be remediated.  

 

• Site remediation, which aims to ensure that contamination at a site will no 
longer pose a significant risk to people or the environment. 

 
1.5 The project site in the vicinity of Vaux Crescent has been identified for further 

detailed inspection on the basis of the previous use of part of the site as an 
Insulating Works and preliminary site investigation data obtained as part of a 
wider site assessment. The available data has recorded contaminants at levels 
that may pose an unacceptable risk, but given the limited data it is not possible to 
determine whether there is a significant possibility of harm to residents. 

 
1.6 A scope of works for an intrusive investigation was prepared free of charge by the 

environmental consultancy Atkins and a bid for £44,588 was submitted to the EA 
to fund the site investigation in the vicinity of Vaux Crescent. The EA assessed the 
project that included consideration of the technical merit and value for money and 
offered an approved grant of £30,803. The reduced amount is due to amendments 
to the proposed scope of works. 

 
1.7 The funding provides an opportunity to perform our statutory function and 

investigate a site that potentially may pose a risk. If the site investigation identifies 
that further investigation works are required or if remediation is required, we will 
be in a position to apply for funding through the (EA) Capital Projects Programme. 
Whilst there is no guarantee that funding will be provided for future works, priority 
scores are given to ongoing projects which have previously received capital 
funding as part of the assessment of the bid. 

 
1.8     The funding offer has been preliminarily accepted. However, a Council decision is 

required to include the fund in the Councils 2012/13 Capital Programme to meet 

Agenda Item 8

Page 87



 

corporate constitutional requirements. The allocation must be spent by 31 March 
2013. 

 
2.0 Financial Implications 
 
2.1 The Head of Corporate Finance and ICT comments that the financial implications 

of the report for the Council are that capital expenditure of £30,803 will be incurred 
in 2012/13 for detailed inspection of land at Vaux Crescent, as indicated above, 
and will be fully financed from DEFRA grant once approved in the Capital 
Programme. 

 
 

. 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 88



 

 

Report to: Licensing & Regulatory Committee  Date of Meeting: 24th September 2012 
  Council       22nd November 2012 
   
Subject: Final Draft Revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy – Gambling 

Act 2005  
 
Report of: Director of Built Environment    Wards Affected: All 
 
Is this a Key Decision?    No      Is it included in the Forward Plan? 
          No 
 
Exempt/Confidential         No  
 

 
Purpose/Summary 
 
To seek Council approval of the revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy  
 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
That the Licensing and Regulatory Committee: 
  

i) Consider and agree the final draft of the revised Statement of Gambling Licensing 
Policy  

ii)   Refer the agreed revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy to full Council for 
approval. 

 
That Council approve the revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 
 
 
How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Objectives? 

 Corporate Objective Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community  √√√√  

2 Jobs and Prosperity  √√√√  

3 Environmental Sustainability  √√√√  

4 Health and Well-Being  √√√√  

5 Children and Young People  √√√√  

6 Creating Safe Communities √√√√   

7 Creating Inclusive Communities  √√√√  

8 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening Local 
Democracy 

√√√√   

 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 89



 

Reasons for the Recommendation: 
 
To enable the timely revision of the Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy. 
 
What will it cost and how will it be financed? 
 
(A) Revenue Costs  N/A 
 
(B) Capital Costs  N/A 
 
Implications: 
 
The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below: 
 

Legal                                     The Head of Corporate Legal Services (LD1079/12) has 
been consulted and has no comments to add. 

 
Finance                                 The Head of Corporate Finance and ICT has no comments 

on this report because the contents of the report have no 
financial implications.   FD1716/12 

 

Human Resources                None. 
 

Equality 
1. No Equality Implication      

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated 

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains  

 
Impact on Service Delivery:  
 
None. 
 
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 
 
The consultation was approved by the Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation 
Standards Panel on 18th November 2011 and took place between 1st May 2012 and 23rd 
July 2012. 
 
Are there any other options available for consideration? 
 
Publication of the Statement is a legal obligation and therefore there are no alternative 
options. 
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 
 
Immediately following the Council  Meeting. 
 

√√√√ 

 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 90



 

 
Contact Officer: Kevin Coady 
Tel:   0151 934 2946 
Email:  kevin.coady@sefton.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: 
 

• The Gambling Act 2005.  

• Guidance issued under Section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005 by the Gambling 
Commission – May 2009. 

• Existing Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy.  

• Statutory Instrument 636 / 2006 - The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority 
Policy Statement) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006. 

• Statutory Instrument 637 / 2006 - The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority 
Policy Statement) (First Appointment Day) Order 2006. 

• Project proposal to Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Standards Panel, 
18th November 2011 - Revision of Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 91



 

1. Background 
 
1.1 Members will recall that Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (“the GA05”) 

requires that all licensing authorities prepare and publish a statement of the 
principles that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under the GA05 
during the three-year period to which the policy applies. A licensing policy 
statement will last for a maximum of three years, but can be reviewed and revised 
by an authority at any time.  

 
1.2 The existing Policy has been kept under review since coming into force on 31st 

January 2010 and no revision has been deemed necessary to date. However, the 
Policy will require revising during 2012 in order for it to take effect from 31st 
January 2013 (when the new three year cycle will commence). 

 
1.3 Section 349 (3) of the GA05 requires that the Licensing Authority consult the 

following on the Policy (or any subsequent revision):  
 

• The chief officer of police for the Authority's area;  

• One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the interests 
of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the Authority's area; and, 

• One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the interests 
of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the Authority's 
functions under this Act. 

 
1.4 The views of the above have to be given appropriate weight when the Policy is 

being determined. 
 
1.5 In addition to the above, the Authority must also have regard to Guidance issued 

under Section 25 of the GA05 by the Gambling Commission.  
 
1.6 Members will also recall that at their Meeting on 21st November 2011 they 

endorsed the timetable for the production of the revised Policy, the details of 
which can be summarised as follows: 

 
March 2012 
 

• First draft presented to Members for comment. 

• Agree revised draft for outside consultation. 
 

May/July 2012 
 

• Outside consultations to take place.  

• Revise Policy (as necessary) as a result of consultations.  
 
August/September 2012 
 

• Present updated Policy to Licensing & Regulatory Committee for comments 
and any final amendments.  

• Submit to full Council for agreement.  
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 92



 

October/November 2012 
 

• Publish revised Policy (to come into effect from 31st January 2013 it has to be 
published no later than 31st December 2012). 

  
2.0  The revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy  
 
2.1 The consultation took place between 1st May 2012 and 23rd July 2012. A full list of 

responses to the consultation exercise, together with the officer appraisal of those 
responses, is provided at Annex 1 to this report. 

 
2.2 Further amendments have been made to the Policy, these being additional to 

those outlined within the Report to Members on 12th March 2012, and these are 
indicated below. 

 
2.3 Paragraph 1.13 changed to reflect amended figures from the new 2011 Census, 

to now read: 
 

Sefton has a resident population of 273,800 (2011 census) and has a high 
proportion of retired people, widowed people and long term unemployed when 
compared with the rest of England and Wales. 
 

2.4 As a result of alterations to the Gambling Commission Guidance, Paragraph 2.31 
changed, to now read: 

 
The Act states that Members clubs must have at least 25 members and be 
established and conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, 
unless the gaming is restricted to bridge and whist. A members’ club must be 
permanent in nature, not be established to make commercial profit and be 
controlled by its members equally; there is no need for a club to have an alcohol 
licence. Examples include working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British Legion 
and clubs with political affiliations. 

 
2.5 A copy of the Final Draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy can be 

accessed via the Council’s Web Library via the below link:  
 

http://sb1msmgov1:9070/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD1152&ID=1152&RPID=66
17810&sch=doc&cat=13378&path=13378 

Agenda Item 9

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a
l 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

A
n

n
e

x
 1

 
0

0
1

S
a
m

a
n

th
a
 C

u
s
h

io
n

, 
M

e
rs

e
y
s
id

e
 P

o
li
c
e
 

S
e

ft
o

n
 L

ic
e

n
s

in
g

 
U

n
it

1
. 

N
o

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 w

it
h

 r
e

v
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 

1
. 

N
/A

 
 
 

A
c
k
 s

e
n
t,
 n

o
 f
u
th

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
. 

0
0

2
H

o
ll

y
 C

o
o

k
R

a
c
e

c
o

u
rs

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

, 
R

a
c
e

c
o

u
rs

e
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 L

im
it

e
d

 

1
.

P
a
ra

 
2
.1

3
 

–
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 

a
s
k
e

d
 

to
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

ra
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
s
 

w
ill

 
n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 

s
in

c
e

 
it
s
 
fo

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 
c
a

n
n

o
t 

b
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

2
.

P
a

ra
s

 3
.3

, 
3

.1
2

 &
 6

.1
2
 –

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 

a
s
k
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

w
a
re

 t
h

a
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
L

A
0

3
 

a
n

d
 P

S
IA

 2
0

0
1

 a
re

 a
lr
e
a
d

y
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 l

ic
e
n
s
e
d
 d

o
o
r 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

 
a

n
d

 
th

a
t 

w
e
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

n
o

t 
d

u
p

lic
a

te
 

o
th

e
r 

re
g
u
la

to
ry

 r
e
g
im

e
s
. 

3
.

P
a
ra

 6
.7

 –
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 

th
a
t 

a
n
y
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

c
o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 

im
p

o
s
e

d
 

d
o
 

n
o

t 
e

x
c
e

e
d
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 
in

 
th

e
 

P
re

m
is

e
 

L
ic

e
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
d
a
to

ry
 a

n
d
 D

e
fa

u
lt
 C

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
. 

1
. 

N
o

t 
th

o
u

g
h

t 
n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
o

r 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 a

lt
e
r 

P
o
lic

y
. 

2
. 

A
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

, 
P

o
lic

y
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 
s
ta

te
s
 
a

t 
P

a
ra

 
8

.3
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 s
e
e
k
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 
d
u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

re
g

u
la

to
ry

 
re

g
im

e
s
 

w
h

e
re

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 

N
o
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 a

lt
e
r 

d
ra

ft
 

p
o
lic

y
.

3
. 

N
o
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
to

 
a
lt
e
r 

P
o
lic

y
 

a
s
 w

o
u

ld
 f

e
tt

e
r 

o
u
r 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
 i
n
 

fu
tu

re
.

 
 

A
c
k
 s

e
n

t,
 n

o
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

. 

0
0
3

C
a
rl

R
a
in

b
ir

d
 

M
e

rs
e

y
s

id
e

 F
ir

e
 &

 
R

e
s
c

u
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

1
. 

N
o

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 w

it
h

 r
e

v
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 

1
. 

N
/A

 
 
 

A
c
k
 s

e
n

t,
 n

o
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

. 

0
0
4

M
r 

A
n

d
y
 S

q
u

ir
e
s
 

V
ia

 e
m

a
il
 

1
. 

W
a

n
ts

 
u
s
 

to
 

re
s
tr

ic
t 

th
e

 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

G
a

m
in

g
 

M
a
c
h

in
e

s
 

a
llo

w
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 

b
o

o
k
m

a
k
e
rs

 o
r 

c
a
s
in

o
s
. 

1
. 

N
u

m
b
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 

ty
p

e
s
 

o
f 

M
a

c
h

in
e
s
 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 
a
re

 s
e

t 
b

y
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t,
 

u
n

a
b

le
 

to
 

a
lt
e

r 
P

o
lic

y
.

 
 

A
c
k
 s

e
n

t,
 n

o
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 95



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
t 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

C
o

m
m

e
ts

n
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l

2
. 

W
a

n
ts

 
u
s
 

to
 

re
s
tr

ic
t 

th
e

 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

g
a

m
b

lin
g

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 

B
o

ro
u
g

h
. 

2
. 

C
a
n
n
o
t 

re
s
tr

ic
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

, 
A

c
t 

s
ta

te
s
 

w
e

 
h

a
v
e

 
to

 
“a

im
 

to
 

p
e
rm

it
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 f

o
r 

g
a
m

b
lin

g
” 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

a
n
y
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

c
o
d
e

s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 

th
e
 

G
a
m

b
lin

g
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

G
u
id

a
n

c
e
, 

th
e
 

th
re

e
 

lic
e
n
s
in

g
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

a
n

d
 

o
u

r 
P

o
lic

y
. 

U
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

lt
e
r 

P
o
lic

y
. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 96



COUNCIL – 22 NOVEMBER 2012 

 

REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

 

COUNCIL CONSTITUTION – URGENCY AND CALL-IN PROVISIONS 

 

 

I wish to report that the Chair of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee gave his consent, under Rule 28 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules and Rule 46 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
set out in the Council Constitution to the following issues being dealt with, on 
the basis that the decision could not be reasonably deferred, and not subject 
to call-in. 
 
CABINET – 13 SEPTEMBER 2012 

 
(The Chair agreed that the following item be considered as an urgent item 
under Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended 
by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 to enable the 
Council to instigate High Court proceedings as soon as is practicable). 
 
58. HAWTHORNES’ FREE SCHOOL - UPDATE 

 
The Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Corporate Support 
Services and the Director of Young People and Families which provided 
details of the action been taken by Council officers to resolve the position 
relating to the former staff from St George of England and St Wilfrid’s High 
Schools who do not have a job in the Hawthorne’s Free School . The report 
also provided Counsel’s advice and to sought the views of the Cabinet on 
whether steps should be taken to seek a High Court Declaration.  
  
Prior to commencing deliberations on the matter a leaflet was distributed to 
Members that had been submitted by the Pals of St. Georges relating to 
request for hardship loans.   
  
RESOLVED: That: 
  
(1) the legal advice provided by Counsel (dated 29 August 2012) 

appended to this report and in particular the ‘on balance’ conclusion 
reached by Counsel with respect to an application of TUPE law and to 
the application to the High Court seeking a Declaration be noted; 

  
(2) following consideration of Counsel’s advice, the Head of Corporate 

Legal Services be authorised to apply to the High Court for a 
Declaration as to the applicability of TUPE to the former staff of both St 
Wilfrid’s Catholic High School and St George of England Specialist 
Engineering College; 

  

Agenda Item 10

Page 97



(3) consistent with the Council’s belief that TUPE applies, the Cabinet’s 
view was that it is not appropriate to grant hardship loans in these 
circumstances; 

  
(4) the Cabinet notes the difficult circumstances that the staff are in and 

the dignified manner in which they are conducting themselves in 
relation to  the matters raised; 

  
(5) it be noted that the proposal is a Key Decision but it has not been 

included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.  
Consequently, the Leader of the Council and the Chair of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services) had given his consent 
under Rule 28 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules for these 
decisions to be treated as urgent on the basis that they cannot be 
reasonable deferred because the Council needs to instigate High Court 
proceedings as soon as is practicable; and 

  
(6) It be noted that the Leader of the Council and the Chair of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services) had given his 
consent under Rule 46 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
for these decisions to be treated as urgent and not subject to "call in" 
on the basis that they cannot be reasonably deferred because they 
cannot be reasonable deferred because the Council needs to instigate 
High Court proceedings as soon as is practicable. 

 
 
Councillor Peter Dowd 
Leader of the Council 

Agenda Item 10

Page 98


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Transformation Programme and Revenue Budget 2012 - 2015
	8 Capital Programme - Contaminated Land Capital Project Grant
	9 Final Draft Revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy - Gambling Act 2005
	Revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy Annex 1

	10 Council Constitution - Urgency and Call-in Provisions

